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NOTICE OF MEETING 
GOVERNING BODY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS 

Tuesday, February 18, 2020 – 6:00 pm 
 

A quorum of the Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation 
and the Planning & Zoning Commission may be present 

              
 
Notice is hereby given that on the 18th day of February 2020 the Marble Falls City Council will meet in 
regular session at 6:00 pm in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 800 3rd Street, Marble Falls, Texas, 
at which time the following subjects will be discussed: 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE QUORUM IS PRESENT 

 
2. INVOCATION 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES AND TO THE TEXAS FLAG.  

“Honor the Texas Flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.” 
 

4. UPDATES, PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
• Presentation of 2019 Community Pride Awards.  Mayor John Packer 
• Update from the Central Texas Water Coalition.  Jo Karr Tedder, President 
• Presentation regarding the upcoming 2020 Census.  Valerie Kreger, Director of 

Development Services  
• Proclamation – Black History Month 
• Proclamation – National Engineer’s Week (February 16-22, 2020) 

 
5. CITIZEN COMMENTS.  This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Council concerning an issue of 

community interest that is not on the agenda.  Comments on a specific agenda item must be made when the 
agenda item comes before the Council.  The Mayor may place a time limit on all comments.  Any deliberation of 
an issue raised during Citizen Comments is limited to a statement of fact regarding the item; a statement 
concerning the policy regarding the item or a proposal to place the item on a future agenda. 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA.  The items listed are considered to be routine and non-controversial by the Council and 
will be approved by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember so 
requests, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to a motion and vote.  The item 
will be considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 

 
(a)  Approval of the minutes of the February 4, 2020 regular meeting and workshop.  

Christina McDonald, City Secretary 
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(b) Acceptance of the Marble Falls Police Department Annual Contact Report.  Mark 

Whitacre, Chief of Police 
 

(c) Approval of Resolution 2020-R-02A allowing for the submission of an application to the 
Office of the Governor’s Criminal Justice Division for a DJ-Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant for the Mobile Command Center Video Upgrade Project.  Mark 
Whitacre, Chief of Police 
 

(d) Approval of a replat of Lot 2-C, Barker Subdivision, and a Subdivision Waiver to Appendix B - 
Development Code, Article 6 - Subdivision Design and Land Development, Division 6.2 - 
Subdivision Design Standards, Section 6.2.6.B - Frontage on or Adjacent to Public Streets 
Required.  Valerie Kreger, Director of Development Services  
 

(e) Approval of a Funding Agreement between the City of Marble Falls and the Marble Falls 
Economic Development Corporation for acquisition of property for future park use, being 
110 and 114 Buena Vista.  Mike Hodge, City Manager 
 

7. REGULAR AGENDA.  Council will individually consider and possibly take action on any or all of the following 
items: 
 
(a) Public Hearing, Discussion and Action on Ordinance 2020-O-02C regarding the adoption 

of the 2015 Edition of the International Swimming Pool and Spa Code and amending 
Chapter 7 - Buildings and Building Regulations of the City of Marble Falls Code of 
Ordinances.  Valerie Kreger, Director of Development Services 
 

(b) Presentation, Discussion and Action on the acceptance of the FY 2018/19 Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Audit.  Baron Sauls, Director of Finance 
 

8. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
• Update on First United Methodist Church Drainage 

 
9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

CLOSE OPEN SESSION AND CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to §551.071 (Private 
Consultation between the Council and its Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberation regarding the 
Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property) and pursuant to §551.087 (Deliberation 
Regarding Economic Development Negotiations) of the Open Meetings Act. Tex. Gov’t. Code, 
Council will meet in Executive Session to discuss the following: 

 
• Hotel Conference Center Update 
• Discussion regarding Economic Development Prospects 
• Consultation with City Attorney regarding settlement of condemnation litigation 

regarding 110 and 114 Buena Vista properties 
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10. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION FOR POSSIBLE ACTION RESULTING FROM ITEMS 
DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
• Discuss and Consider Action regarding Agreements to settle Cause No. C5726, City of 

Marble Falls v Brian Dunnam et al and Cause No. C5725, City of Marble Falls v. Corina 
Davis (aka Corina Guillory) et al currently pending in Burnet County Court at Law and 
to authorize legal counsel to dismiss each lawsuit. 
 

• Discuss and Consider Action regarding adoption of Resolutions 2020-R-02B and 2020-
R-02C authorizing the City Manager to execute the settlement agreements and 
directing city staff to schedule the purchase and closing on the real property located 
at 110 and 114 Buena Vista in accordance with the terms of the settlement 
agreements.  

 
11. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
“The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to 
discuss any matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, including, but not limited to, 
Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations 
about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), 551.087 
(Economic Development), 418.183 (Deliberations about Homeland Security Issues) and as authorized by the Texas 
Tax Code, Section 321.3022 (Sales Tax Information).” 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Marble Falls will provide for reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending City Council Meetings.  To better serve you, requests should be received 24 
hours prior to the meeting.  Please contact Ms. Christina McDonald, City Secretary at (830) 693-3615. 
 

Certificate of Posting 
 

I, Christina McDonald, City Secretary for the City of Marble Falls, Texas, do certify that this Notice of Meeting was 
posting at City Hall, in a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 13th day of February, 2020 
at 12:15 pm and remained so posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 

/s/ Christina McDonald  
Christina McDonald, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 
 

 



PROCLAMATION 

Designation of February as Black History Month 
Whereas, Black History Month affords special opportunity to become more 

knowledgeable about African American heritage, and to honor the many 
African American leaders who have contributed to the progress of our 
nation;  

Whereas,  recognizing the important contributions of African Americans that have 
helped establish the foundational values of Marble Falls and the United 
States of America, it is important to reflect on those pioneers who came 
before;  

Whereas, acknowledging how Africans Americans have made our daily lives easier 
with the following inventions: the three-light traffic light, home security 
system, carbon filament light bulb, colored PC monitors, refrigerated trucks, 
blood banks, and cell phones; 

Whereas,  such knowledge can strengthen the insight of all our citizens regarding the 
issues of human rights, the great strides that have been made in the 
crusade to eliminate the barriers of equality for minority groups, and the 
continuing struggle against racial discrimination and poverty; 

Whereas,  African American families such as the Yetts, Conelys, Bartons, Moores, 
Halls, Kennedys, Pimpletons, Johnsons, and many others, have long been 
part of the Marble Falls community before it was incorporated as a City; 
before and after segregation and the Civil Rights Movement; and a part of 
the current economic development of the area;  

Whereas,  we urge our residents of all races, nationalities, creeds, religions, and 
backgrounds, to join together in making this period a time of reflection of the 
principles of justice and equality for all people; 

Whereas,  the Marble Falls City Council distinguishes the benefits derived from 
honoring the contributions of African Americans;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY I, John Packer, Mayor of the City of Marble 
Falls, and on behalf of the City Council, do hereby distinguish February 2020 as Black 
History Month in the City of Marble Falls and Burnet County; and encourage everyone to 
recognize the great impact made in our community, both past and present. 

 

              
       John Packer, Mayor 

 



PROCLAMATION 
NATIONAL ENGINEERS WEEK 

FEBRUARY 16-22, 2020 
 
WHEREAS,  Engineers use their scientific and technical knowledge and skills in creative 
and innovative ways to fulfill society’s needs; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Engineers face the major technological challenges of our time – from 
rebuilding towns devastated by natural disaster, cleaning up the environment, and 
assuring safe, clean, and efficient sources of energy, to designing information systems 
that will speed our country into the future; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Engineers are encouraging our young math and science students to realize 
the practical power of their knowledge; and, 
 
WHEREAS, we will look more than ever to engineers and their knowledge and skills to 
meet the challenges of the twenty-first century; and,  
 
WHEREAS, American Society of Civil Engineers, ASCE, is the preeminent organization 
representing the civil engineering profession with the mission of delivering value to its 
members, advancing civil engineering and protecting the public health, safety and 
welfare; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Engineers Week, which was founded in 1951, is dedicated to ensuring a 
diverse and well-educated future engineering workforce by increasing understanding of 
and interest in engineering and technology careers; 
  
NOW THEREFORE, I, John Packer, Mayor of the City of Marble Falls by virtue of the 
authority vested in me by the laws of the City of Marble Falls, Texas, do hereby proclaim 
February 16-22, 2020, as 

NATIONAL ENGINEERS WEEK 
 
in Marble Falls, Texas, and urge all citizens to join me in recognizing the important 
contributions of engineers to our daily lives.  
 
In Witness Whereof, I, John Packer, have hereunto set my hand and have caused the 
Official Seal of the City of Marble Falls, Texas to be affixed this 18th day of February, 
2020. 
 
 
              
        John Packer, Mayor 



6(a) 

February 18, 2020 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the minutes of the February 4, 2020 regular meeting and workshop. 
Christina McDonald, City Secretary 
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STATE OF TEXAS    
COUNTY OF BURNET 
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS 
 
On this the 4th day of February 2020 the Council of the City of Marble Falls convened in regular 
session at 6:00 pm at the City Hall Council Chambers located at 800 Third Street, Marble Falls, 
Texas, with notice of meeting giving time, place, date, and subject having been posted as 
described in Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
PRESENT:  John Packer    Mayor  

Richard Westerman  Mayor Pro-Tem 
William (Dee) Haddock Councilmember 
Craig Magerkurth  Councilmember 
Celia Merrill   Councilmember  
Reed Norman   Councilmember 
Dave Rhodes   Councilmember 

       
ABSENT:  None 
 
STAFF:   Mike Hodge   City Manager 

Caleb Kraenzel   Assistant City Manager   
 Christina McDonald  City Secretary 

   Patty Akers   City Attorney 
   Baron Sauls   Director of Finance 
   Angel Alvarado  Director of Human Resources 
   James Kennedy  Director of Public Works 
   Jay Everett   Assistant Director of Public Works 
   Mark Whitacre  Chief of Police 
   Russell Sander   Fire Chief 
   Tommy Crane   Fire Marshal 
   Lacey Dingman  Parks and Recreation Director 
   Christian Fletcher  Executive Director Marble Falls EDC 
   Midge Dockery  EDC Business Development Coordinator 
   Erin Burks   Downtown Coordinator 
   Valerie Kreger   Director of Development Services 
   Mike Ingalsbe   Building Official 
   Justin Hakes   Code Enforcement Officer 
   Joey Wray   Code Enforcement Officer 
   Chris Pounds   Building Inspector 
   Kacey Paul   City Engineer 
 
VISITORS:  LeeAnn Clark (Historic Main Street and Sugar Mama’s Cookies), Shannon Heep 
(NASDA-Derby), Belinda Kelly (Main Street Consignments), Larry Jones (Planning and Zoning 
Commissioner Place 3 Applicant), Connie Swinney (The Highlander), Alex Copeland (Daily Trib), 
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Paul Woods and Wil Chandler (LAN Engineering), Steven Young and Scott Swiderski (Trihydro), 
Rachael Lorance and Robyn Rivers (RBar & Grill), Norman Lucas (Brass Hall), Patrice Street (Fiesta 
Winery), Scott Streit (First Capital Bank), Nathan Neese (C3 Development/Gregg Ranch), Danny 
Zincke (City of Boerne), Mona McBryde and Harold Henderson (Lights ‘N Such), Aileen Spillman 
(Marble Falls Flowers & Gift Shop), Mindy Miller and Jarrod Metzgar (Mable Falls/Lake LBJ 
Chamber of Commerce), Susan Patton (LCRA) 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE QUORUM IS PRESENT.  Mayor Packer called the meeting 

to order at 6:00 pm. 
 

2. INVOCATION.  Councilmember Merrill gave the invocation. 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES AND TO THE TEXAS FLAG.  
Councilmember Haddock led the pledges. 
 

4. UPDATES, PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
• Presentation of Development Services Department 2019 Year End Report.  Valerie 

Kreger, Director gave the presentation. 
 

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS.  LeeAnn Clark (Owner Sugar Mama Cookies and representative of a 
portion of the Historic Main Street merchants) addressed Council stating that she was not 
against the Derby event as implied in a recent newspaper article.  Mr. Clark stated that she 
was not in favor of the duration of the event. 
 
Shannon Heep (NASDA-Derby) advised Council the organization submitted their special event 
permit application on February 3, 2020 under the current ordinance with an alternative event 
plan (street closure, etc.) than recommended by City staff. 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA.   
 

(a)  Approval of the minutes of the January 21, 2020 regular meeting.  
 

(b) Approval of an Omnibus Agreement between the City of Marble Falls and the Highland 
Lakes Creative Arts for the Sculpture on Main Event.   

 
(c) Approval of an appointment to Place 3 of the Planning and Zoning Commission.   

 
(d) Approval of Ordinance 2020-0-02B, ordering a General Election to be held on May 2, 

2020 for the purpose of electing three Councilmembers to serve for a term of two years.   
 

(e) Approval of a Construction Improvement Agreement for Gregg Ranch at Marble Falls, 
Phase One, City of Marble Falls, Burnet County, Texas.   
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Councilmember Haddock made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilmember Merrill and carried by a unanimous vote (7-0). 
 

7. REGULAR AGENDA.   
(a) Public Hearing, Discussion and Action on Ordinance 2020-O-02A, an ordinance 

amending and replacing Chapter 5 Article III (Special Events) of the Code of Ordinances 
in it’s entirely and adopting Chapter 5 Article III (Special Event Regulations).  Erin Burks, 
Downtown Coordinator addressed Council.  Ms. Burks stated that an amendment to the 
Master Fee Ordinance establishing fees for special event permits will be presented to 
Council for approval at the March 3, 2020 regular meeting.  Mayor Packer opened the 
public hearing.  LeeAnn Clark inquired as to whether or not the proposed Special Event 
Ordinance limits the duration of special events.  It was stated that the ordinance does 
not.  There being no further discussion, Mayor Packer closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Rhodes made a motion to approve Ordinance 2020-O-02A.  
Councilmember Haddock seconded the motion.  The motion carried by a vote of 7-0. 
 

8. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT.  Assistant City Manager Caleb Kraenzel gave updates on the 
Flatrock Development, Gregg Ranch, Manzano Ridge, and Putters & Gutters. 

 
9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

CLOSE OPEN SESSION AND CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to §551.07 (Private 
Consultation between the Council and its Attorney) of the Open Meetings Act. Tex. Gov’t 
Code, Council will meet in Executive Session to discuss the following: 
 

• Consultation with City Attorney regarding City’s authority to sell a portion of its 
water system 
 

• Consultation with City Attorney regarding settlement of condemnation litigation 
regarding 110 and 114 Buena Vista properties 
 

6:53 pm Convened to Executive Session 
7:14 pm Returned to Open Session 

 
10. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION FOR POSSIBLE ACTION RESULTING FROM ITEMS 

DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION.  No action was taken. 
 
11. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS.  Council reviewed items scheduled for the 

February 18, 2020 meeting. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT.  There being no further business to discuss, Councilmember Merrill made a 

motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Westerman.  The meeting 
was adjourned at 7:20 pm.    
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        John Packer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Christina McDonald, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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STATE OF TEXAS    
COUNTY OF BURNET 
CITY OF MARBLE FALLS 
 
On this the 4th day of February 2020 the Council of the City of Marble Falls convened in 
workshop session at 7:00 pm at the City Hall Council Chambers located at 800 Third Street, 
Marble Falls, Texas, with notice of meeting giving time, place, date, and subject having been 
posted as described in Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
PRESENT:  John Packer    Mayor  

Richard Westerman  Mayor Pro-Tem 
William (Dee) Haddock Councilmember 
Craig Magerkurth  Councilmember 
Celia Merrill   Councilmember  
Reed Norman   Councilmember 
Dave Rhodes   Councilmember 

       
ABSENT:  None 
 
STAFF:   Mike Hodge   City Manager 

Caleb Kraenzel   Assistant City Manager   
 Christina McDonald  City Secretary 

   Patty Akers   City Attorney 
   Baron Sauls   Director of Finance 
   James Kennedy  Director of Public Works 
   Jay Everett   Assistant Director of Public Works 
   Mark Whitacre  Chief of Police 
   Russell Sander   Fire Chief 
   Tommy Crane   Fire Marshal 
   Lacey Dingman  Parks and Recreation Director 
   Christian Fletcher  Executive Director Marble Falls EDC 
   Erin Burks   Downtown Coordinator 
   Valerie Kreger   Director of Development Services 
   Joey Wray   Code Enforcement Officer 
   Kacey Paul   City Engineer 
 
VISITORS:  Paul Woods and Wil Chandler (LAN Engineering), Steven Young and Scott Swiderski 
(Trihydro) 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER.  Mayor Packer called the workshop to order at 7:20 pm 
 

2. WORKSHOP.  City Engineer Kacey Paul gave a presentation on wastewater 
treatment plant processes and staff’s and Councilmember Rhodes’ recent trip to 
Illinois to review Aqua-Aerobic System’s treatment processes and new technology 
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which would reduce the city’s proposed new plant’s footprint.  Expanding plant 
capacity was also discussed. 

 
3. ADJOURNMENT. There being no further business to discuss, Councilmember Rhodes 

made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem 
Westerman.  The workshop was adjourned at 8:19 pm.    

     
 
              
        John Packer, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       

Christina McDonald, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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February 18, 2020 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(b) Acceptance of the Marble Falls Police Department Annual Contact Report. Mark 
Whitacre, Chief of Police 
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Council Agenda Item Cover Memo 
February 18, 2020 

 
  
Agenda Item No.: 6(b) 
Presenter:  Mark N. Whitacre, Chief of Police 
Department:  Police Department 
Legal Review:        N/A 
 

AGENDA CAPTION 
  
Acceptance of the Marble Falls Police Department Annual Contact Report. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
  
In 2001, the Texas Legislature passed the Texas Racial Profiling Law (S.B. 1074).  Since 
becoming effective, the Marble Falls Police Department, in accordance with the law, has 
collected contact data for the purpose of identifying and addressing (if necessary) 
concerns regarding racial profiling practices by police officers. 
 
In this report, you will find documentation that supports the fact that the Marble Falls 
Police Department has complied with The Texas Racial Profiling Law. This report also 
contains statistical data relevant to motor vehicle contacts between January 1, 2019 and 
December 31, 2019.  The data and supporting documentation presented in this report 
support the notion that the Marble Falls Police Department is committed to the 
identification and resolution (if necessary) of all issues relevant to racial profiling 
according to the state law.   
 



 
 

The Marble Falls Police Department  
Annual Contact Report  

~2019~ 
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February 18, 2020 
 
Marble Falls City Council  
Marble Falls, Texas 78654  
 
Dear Distinguished Members of the City Council,  
 
In 2001, the Texas Legislature passed the Texas Racial Profiling Law (S.B. 
1074). Since becoming effective, the Marble Falls Police Department, in 
accordance with the law, has collected contact data for the purpose of 
identifying and addressing (if necessary) concerns regarding racial profiling 
practices by police officers. In 2009, the Texas Racial Profiling Law was 
modified and new requirements are now in place.  
 
In this report, you will find documentation that supports the fact that the 
Marble Falls Police Department has complied with The Texas Racial 
Profiling Law. This report also contains statistical data relevant to motor 
vehicle contacts between January 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019. The 
data and supporting documentation presented in this report support the 
notion that the Marble Falls Police Department is committed to the 
identification and resolution (if necessary) of all issues relevant to racial 
profiling according to the state law.  
 
Sincerely,  

 
 

Mark N. Whitacre  
Chief of Police 
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MARBLE FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT 
POLICY ON RACIAL PROFILING 

 
  
I. POLICY  
 
We are committed to a respect for constitutional rights in the performance of our duties. Our success is 
based on the respect we give to our communities, and the respect members of the community observe 
toward law enforcement. To this end, we shall exercise our sworn duties, responsibilities, and obligations 
in a manner that does not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, gender, sexual orientation, national 
origin, ethnicity, age, or religion. Respect for diversity and equitable enforcement of the law are essential 
to our mission.  
 
All enforcement actions shall be based on the standards of reasonable suspicion or probable cause as 
required by the Fourth Amendment to the U. S. Constitution and by statutory authority. In all enforcement 
decisions, officers shall be able to articulate specific facts, circumstances, and conclusions that support 
probable cause or reasonable suspicion for arrests, searches, seizures, and stops of individuals. Officers 
shall not stop, detain, arrest, search, or attempt to search anyone based solely upon the person's race, 
ethnic background, gender, sexual orientation, religion, economic status, age, cultural group, or any other 
identifiable group.  
 
All departmental orders are informed and guided by this directive. Nothing in this order limits non-
enforcement consensual contacts between officers and the public.  
 
II. PURPOSE  
 
The purpose of this order is to inform officers that bias-based policing is prohibited by the department. 
Additionally, this order will assist officers in identifying key contexts in which bias may influence these 
actions, and emphasize the importance of the constitutional guidelines within which we operate. 
 
III. DEFINITIONS  
 
Most of the following terms appear in this policy statement. In any case, these terms appear in the larger 
public discourse about alleged biased enforcement behavior and in other orders. These definitions are 
intended to facilitate on-going discussion and analysis of our enforcement practices.  
 

A. Bias: Prejudice or partiality based on preconceived ideas, a person's upbringing, culture, 
experience, or education.  

 
B. Biased-based policing: Stopping, detaining, searching, or attempting to search, or using force 

against a person based upon his or her race, ethnic background, gender, sexual orientation, 
religion, economic status, age, cultural group, or any other identifiable group.  

 
C. Ethnicity: A cluster of characteristics that may include race but also cultural characteristics or 

traits that are shared by a group with a common experience or history.  
 

D. Gender: Unlike sex, a psychological classification based on cultural characteristics or traits.  
 

E. Probable cause: Specific facts and circumstances within an officer's knowledge that would lead 
a reasonable officer to believe that a specific offense has been or is being committed, and that 
the suspect has committed it. Probable cause will be determined by the courts reviewing the 
totality of the circumstances surrounding the arrest or search from an objective point of view.  
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F. Race: A category of people of a particular decent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, 
Middle Eastern, or Native American descent. As distinct from ethnicity, race refers only to 
physical characteristics sufficiently distinctive to group people under a classification.  

 
G. Racial profiling: A law-enforcement initiated action based on an individual’s race, ethnicity, or 

national origin rather than on the individual’s behavior or on information identifying the individual 
as having engaged in criminal activity.  

 
H. Reasonable suspicion: Specific facts and circumstances that would lead a reasonable officer to 

believe criminal activity is afoot and the person to be detained is somehow involved. Reasonable 
suspicion will be determined by the courts reviewing the totality of the circumstances surrounding 
the detention from an objective point of view.  

 
I. Sex: A biological classification, male or female, based on physical and genetic characteristics.  

 
J. Stop: An investigative detention of a person for a brief period of time, based on reasonable 

suspicion.  
 
IV. PROCEDURES  
 

A. General responsibilities  
 

1. Officers are prohibited from engaging in bias-based profiling or stopping, detaining, 
searching, arresting, or taking any enforcement action including seizure or forfeiture activities, 
against any person based solely on the person’s race, ethnic background, gender, sexual 
orientation, religion, economic status, age, cultural group, or any other identifiable group. 
These characteristics, however, may form part of reasonable suspicion or probable cause 
when officers are seeking a suspect with one or more of these attributes.  
 

2. Investigative detentions, traffic stops, arrests, searches, and property seizures by officers will 
be based on a standard of reasonable suspicion or probable cause in accordance with the 
Fourth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. Officers must be able to articulate specific facts 
and circumstances that support reasonable suspicion or probable cause for investigative 
detentions, traffic stops, subject stops, arrests, nonconsensual searches, and property 
seizures. Except as provided in number 3 below, officers shall not consider race/ethnicity in 
establishing either reasonable suspicion or probably cause. Similarly, except as provided 
below, officers shall not consider race/ethnicity in deciding to initiate even those 
nonconsensual encounters that do not amount to legal detentions or to request consent to 
search.  

 
3. Officers may take into account the reported race or ethnicity of a specific suspect or suspects 

based on trustworthy, locally relevant information that links a person or persons of a specific 
race/ethnicity to a particular unlawful incident(s). Race/ethnicity can never be used as the 
sole basis for probable cause or reasonable suspicion. Except as provided above, 
reasonable suspicion or probable cause shall form the basis for any enforcement actions or 
decisions. Individuals shall be subjected to stops, seizures, or detentions only upon 
reasonable suspicion that they have committed, are committing, or are about to commit an 
offense. Officers shall document the elements of reasonable suspicion and probable cause in 
appropriate reports.  
 

4. Officers shall observe all constitutional safeguards and shall respect the constitutional rights 
of all persons.  

 
a. As traffic stops furnish a primary source of bias-related complaints, officers shall have a 

firm understanding of the warrantless searches allowed by law, particularly the use of 
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consent. How the officer disengages from a traffic stop may be crucial to a person's 
perception of fairness or discrimination.  

b. Officers shall not use the refusal or lack of cooperation to justify a search of the person or 
vehicle or a prolonged detention once reasonable suspicion has been dispelled.  

 
5. All personnel shall treat everyone with the same courtesy and respect that they would have 

others observe to department personnel. To this end, personnel are reminded that the excise 
of courtesy and respect engenders a future willingness to cooperate with law enforcement.  

 
a. Personnel shall facilitate an individual’s access to other governmental services whenever 

possible, and shall actively provide referrals to other appropriate agencies.  
b. All personnel shall courteously accept, document, and forward to the Chief of Police any 

complaints made by an individual against the department.  
 

6. When feasible, personnel shall offer explanations of the reasons for enforcement actions or 
other decisions that bear on the individual’s well-being unless the explanation would 
undermine an investigation or jeopardize an officer's safety.  
 

7. When concluding an encounter, personnel shall thank him or her for cooperating.  
 

8. When feasible, all personnel shall identify themselves by name. When a person requests the 
information, personnel shall give their departmental identification number, name of the 
immediate supervisor, or any other reasonable information.  
 

9. All personnel are accountable for their actions. Personnel shall justify their actions when 
required.  

 
B. Supervisory responsibilities  

 
1. Supervisors shall be held accountable for the observance of constitutional safeguards during 

the performance of their duties and those of their subordinates. Supervisors shall identify and 
correct instances of bias in the work of their subordinates.  
 

2. Supervisors shall use the disciplinary mechanisms of the department to ensure compliance 
with this order and the constitutional requirements of law enforcement.  
 

3. Supervisors shall be mindful that in accounting for the actions and performance of 
subordinates, supervisors are critical to maintaining community trust in law enforcement. 
Supervisors shall continually reinforce the ethic of impartial enforcement of the laws, and 
shall ensure that personnel, by their actions, maintain the community's trust in law 
enforcement.  
 

4. Supervisors are reminded that biased enforcement of the law engenders not only mistrust of 
law enforcement, but increases safety risks to personnel as well as exposing the employee(s) 
and department to liability.  
 

5. Supervisors shall be held accountable for repeated instances of biased enforcement of their 
subordinates if the supervisor knew, or should have known, of the subordinate’s actions.  
 

6. Supervisors shall ensure that all enforcement actions are duly documented per departmental 
policy. Supervisors shall ensure that all reports show adequate documentation of reasonable 
suspicion and probable cause, if applicable. Any enforcement action that begins as a 
consensual encounter will also have the circumstances of the initial encounter documented.  
 

7. Supervisors shall facilitate the filing of any complaints about law- enforcement service.  
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8. Supervisors will randomly review at least three video tapes per officer (either body camera 

and/or in-car camera video) per quarter. For this policy a “quarter” is defined as a 3-month 
period of time. Supervisors are not required to watch each incident of an entire shift; 
however, reviewing the footage in a manner intended to gain an understanding of that 
officer’s performance and adherence to policy and law is required. Supervisors will document 
the random review of the video in Guardian Tracking and any violations of policy or law will 
be addressed through the use of Policy 2.08 Professional Standards & Internal Compliance 
Enforcement.  
 

9. Section 8 above applies only to first-line uniformed officers and their immediate supervisors. 
In the absence of a first-line supervisor this responsibility will move to the Patrol Captain.  

 
C. Disciplinary consequences 

 
1. Actions prohibited by this order shall be cause for disciplinary action, up to and including 

dismissal.  
 

D. Training  
 

1. Officers shall complete all training required by state law regarding bias-based profiling.  
 
V. COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION  
 

A. The department shall accept complaints from any person who believes he or she has been 
stopped or searched based on biased based policing. No person shall be discouraged, intimated 
or coerced from filing a complaint, nor discriminated against because he or she filed such a 
complaint.  

 
B. Any employee who receives an allegation of biased based policing, including the officer who 

initiated the stop, shall record the person’s name, address and telephone number, and forward 
the complaint through the appropriate channel or direct the individual(s). Any employee contacted 
shall provide to that person a copy of a complaint form or the department process for filing a 
complaint. All employees will report any allegation of biased based policing to their superior 
before the end of their shift.  

 
C. Investigation of a complaint shall be conducted in a thorough and timely manner. All complaints 

will be acknowledged in writing to the initiator who will receive disposition regarding said 
complaint within a reasonable period of time. The investigation shall be reduced to writing and 
any reviewer’s comments or conclusions shall be filed with the chief. When applicable, findings 
and/or suggestions for disciplinary action, retraining, or changes in policy shall be filed with the 
chief.  

 
D. If a bias-based policing complaint is sustained against an officer, it will result in appropriate 

corrective and/or disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  
 

E. If a departmental video or audio recording of the events upon which a complaint of bias-based 
policing is based exists, this department shall promptly provide a copy of the recording to that 
officer upon receipt of their written request.  

 
VI. PUBLIC EDUCATION 
 

A. This department will inform the public of its policy against bias-based policing and the complaint 
process. Methods that may be utilized to inform the public are the news media, radio, service or 
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civic presentations, the Internet, as well as governing board meetings. Additionally, information 
will be made available as appropriate in languages other than English.  

 
VII. CITATION DATA COLLECTION & REPORTING 
 

A. An officer is required to collect information relating to traffic stops in which a citation or warning is 
issued or an arrest is made. Information collected must include:  

 
1. The person’s race, ethnic background, gender, sexual orientation, religion, economic status, 

age, cultural group, or any other identifiable group, as stated by the person or as determined 
by the officer to the best of his/her ability;  
 

2. Was race or ethnicity known prior to the traffic stop;  
 

3. Reason for the traffic stop;  
 

4. The street address or approximate location of the stop;  
 

5. Whether a search was conducted;  
 

6. If a search was conducted, was it consensual or with probable cause;  
 

7. Whether any contraband was discovered in the course of the search and, if so, the type of 
contraband discovered;  
 

8. The result of the stop:  
 

a. Arrest;  
b. Citation;  
c. Citation and arrest;  
d. Written warning; or  
e. Written warning and arrest;  

 
9. If the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop and/or search, what was the reason for the 

arrest;  
 

10. Was physical force resulting in bodily injury used during the stop?  
 
VIII. USE OF VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT 
 

A. Each motor vehicle used by this department to make traffic and pedestrian stops is equipped with 
a video camera and transmitter-activated equipment; and  

 
B. Each traffic and pedestrian stop made by an officer of this department that is capable of being 

recorded by video and audio, or audio, as appropriate, is recorded.  
 

C. This department shall retain the video and audiotapes, or the audiotape of each traffic and 
pedestrian stop for at least ninety (90) days after the date of the stop. If a complaint is filed with 
this department alleging that one of our officers has engaged in bias-based policing with respect 
to a traffic or pedestrian stop, this department shall retain the video and audiotapes, or the 
audiotape of the stop until final disposition of the complaint.  

 
D. Supervisors will ensure officers of this department are recording their traffic and pedestrian stops. 

Three random recordings of each officer will be reviewed at least once every ninety (90) days. 



 
 
 

~ 8 ~ 
 

The supervisor will then document the review in Guardian Tracking under Video Review on the 
dropdown list.  

 
E. If the equipment used to record audio and/or video of the traffic or pedestrian stop is 

malfunctioning or otherwise not operable, the officer making the stop shall make a proper written 
record (paper citation/paper warning or e-citation/e- warning) and report the information as 
required in Section IX of this policy.  

 
IX. COLLECTION AND REPORTING INFORMATION GATHERED FROM TRAFFIC AND 
PEDESTRIAN STOPS WITHOUT THE USE OF VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT 
 

A. An officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or ordinance regulating 
traffic, or who stops a pedestrian for any suspected offense, shall record and report the same 
information required in Section VIIII.  

 
B. This department shall compile and analyze the information contained in these individual reports. 

Not later than March 1st of each year, this department shall submit a report to our governing body 
containing the information compiled from the preceding calendar year. This report will include:  

 
1. A comparative analysis of the information contained in the individual reports in order to:  

 
a. Determine the prevalence of bias-based policing by officers in this department; and  
b. Examine the disposition of traffic and pedestrian stops made by this department’s 

officers, including searches resulting from stops.  
 

2. Information relating to these individual reports regarding each complaint filed with this 
department alleging bias-based policing.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This report will not include identifying information about a peace officer who makes a stop or 
about an individual who is stopped or arrested by a peace officer. 
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Report on Racial Profiling Complaints 
 
The following table contains data regarding officers that have been the subject of a complaint, 
during the time period of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, based on allegations 
related to possible violations of the Texas Racial Profiling Law.  The final disposition of the case 
is also included.  
 
 
 
A check above indicates that the Marble Falls Police Department has not received any 
complaints, as outlined in the law, on any members of its police force, for having violated the 
Texas Racial Profiling Law during the time period of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 
2019. 
 
 Complaints Filed for Possible Violations of The Texas Racial Profiling Law. 
 

Complaint 
No. 

Alleged Violation Disposition of the Case 
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Motor Vehicle-Related Contact Information 

(January 1, 2019 — December 31, 2019) 
 

 
 

Race/Ethnicity* Contacts 
  

 N % 
Black 183 3.82% 
Asian/Pacific Islander 51 1.07% 
White 3,577 74.72% 
Hispanic/Latino 953 19.91% 
Alaska Native/American Indian 23 0.48% 
   
Total 4,787 100% 

 
 
 

Total Number of Contacts in 
which Officers knew Race and 
Ethnicity of Individual Before 

Being Detained 

Total Number of Contacts in 
which Officers did not know 

Race and Ethnicity of 
Individual Before Being 

Detained 
  

382 4,405 

 
 
 
 

 “N” represents “number” of traffic-related contacts. 
 

* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including Black, 
Asian/Pacific Islander, White, Hispanic/Latino or Alaska Native/American Indian.” 

2963

1824

Gender

Male

Female
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Reason for Stop? Contacts 
  

 N % 
Violation of Law 82 1.71% 
Pre-Existing Knowledge (warrant) 41 0.86% 
Moving Traffic Violation 3,397 70.96% 
Vehicle Traffic Violation 1,267 26.47% 
   
Total 4,787 100% 

 
 
 
 

Result of the Stop Contacts 
  

 N % 
Citation 1,972 41.19% 
Citation and Arrest 17 0.36% 
Written Warning 1,430 29.87% 
Written Warning and Arrest 21 0.44% 
Arrest 97 2.03% 
Verbal Warning 1,250 26.11% 
   
Total 4,787 100% 

 

 
 
 

 “N” represents “number” of traffic-related contacts. 
 

* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including Black, 
Asian/Pacific Islander, White, Hispanic/Latino or Alaska Native/American Indian.” 

Search 
Conducted

Yes

No
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Reason for Search Contacts 
  

 N % 
Consent 33 22.76% 
Contraband in Plain View 4 2.76% 
Incident to Arrest 4 2.76% 
Inventory 41 28.28% 
Probable Cause 63 43.44% 
   
Total 145 100% 

 
 
 
 

Description of Contraband Discovered Contacts 
  

 N % 
Alcohol 59 62.77% 
Currency 2 2.13% 
Drugs 2 2.13% 
Weapons 18 19.15% 
Stolen Property 1 1.06% 
Other 12 12.76% 
   
Total 94 100% 

 
 
 
 

Arrest Based On Contacts 
  

 N % 
Outstanding Warrant 20 20.62% 
Violation of Penal Code 37 38.14% 
Violation of Traffic Law 40 41.24% 
   
Total 97 100% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 “N” represents “number” of traffic-related contacts. 
 

* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including Black, 
Asian/Pacific Islander, White, Hispanic/Latino or Alaska Native/American Indian.” 
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Was physical force resulting in bodily 
injury used during stop? 

Contacts 

  
 N % 
Yes 12 0.25% 
No 4,775 99.75% 
   
Total 4,787 100% 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 “N” represents “number” of traffic-related contacts. 
 

* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including Black, 
Asian/Pacific Islander, White, Hispanic/Latino or Alaska Native/American Indian.” 

35%

3%
5%

14%

43%

Street Address or Approximate 
Location of the Traffic Stop

City Street

County Road

Private Property 
or Other

State Highway

US Highway
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Comparison of Twelve-Year Traffic and Motor Vehicle-
Related Contact Information 

(January 1, 2008 – December 31, 2019) 
 

Race/Ethnicity*  

 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
             

White 81.50% 82.73% 81.69% 84.37% 88.34% 89.89% 91.01% 82.75% 84.40% 88.74% 74.07% 74.72% 

Black 2.37% 2.45% 2.19% 3.02% 3.00% 3.27% 2.37% 4.25% 2.89% 3.95% 4.52% 3.82% 

Hispanic/Latino 15.45% 14.38% 15.50% 11.34% 7.64% 6.05% 5.84% 11.95% 10.41% 5.68% 19.21% 19.91% 

Asian/Pacific 
Islander 0.48% 0.31% 0.45% 0.55% 0.66% 0.59% 0.30% 0.50% 0.75% 0.97% 1.00% 1.07% 

Alaska Native/ 
American Indian 0.20% 0.13% 0.17% 0.72% 0.36% 0.20% 0.48% 0.55% 1.55% 0.66% 1.20% 0.48% 

             

Total** 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Texas Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including White, Black, 
Hispanic/Latino, Asian/Pacific Islander or Alaska Native/American Indian.” 
 
** Figure has been rounded. 
 
 
Twelve-Year Comparison 
  
The twelve-year comparison from 2008 through 2019 showed similarities with respect to 
the traffic-related contacts.  As evident in the Table, the percentage of drivers contacted 
by our officers (in traffic-related incidents) remains consistent over the past twelve 
years. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

~ 15 ~ 
 

Contact Information  
 
 

For additional questions regarding the information presented in this report, please 
contact: 

 
Marble Falls Police Department 

606 Avenue N 
Marble Falls, Texas 78654 

(830) 693-3611 
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February 18, 2020 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(c) Approval of Resolution No. 2020-R-02A, a resolution allowing for the submission 
of an application to the Office of the Governor's Criminal Justice Division for a 
DJ-Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant for the Mobile Command 
Center Video Upgrade Project.  Mark Whitacre, Chief of Police 
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Agenda Item No.:  6(c) 
Presenter:  Mark Whitacre 
Department:  Police 
Legal Review:  ☐ N/A 
 

AGENDA CAPTION 
 

Approval of Resolution No. 2020-R-02A, a resolution allowing for the submission 
of an application to the Office of the Governor's Criminal Justice Division for a 
DJ-Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant for the Mobile Command 
Center Video Upgrade Project. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
This project will fund the upgrade of the AgileMesh rapidly deployable wireless 
video surveillance system currently installed in the Marble Falls Emergency 
Services Mobile Command Center (CAPCOG RMC-4), which is used in support 
of law enforcement and fire rescue incidents. 
 
The Marble Falls Emergency Services Mobile Command Center (RMC-4) 
currently has three Generation 1 AgileMesh cameras.  The grant project will 
purchase three new Generation 2 AgileMesh cameras to replace the current 
outdated system.  The current wireless video system is analog based and is 
several years old.  Technology has advanced and the new system operates on a 
dedicated public safety frequency with a "First Net" ready modem.  Upgrading 
from Generation 1 to Generation 2 MESH radio technology, adding an LTE 
cellular modem, and moving from old analog cameras to the most current 2 
megapixel pan tilt zoom (PTZ) cameras with built in infrared technology (IR) will 
provide much higher video quality for RMC-4.  
 
This upgrade will enhance the quality and functionality of RMC-4's ability to 
deploy video surveillance to locations where it did not previously exist with 
improved security, transmission distance, and connectivity. 
 
Staff intends to submit an application to the DJ-Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant Program for $26,765.00 for the Mobile Command Center Video 
Upgrade Project. 
 
Staff recommends Council approve the submission of the application to the 
Office of the Governor's Criminal Justice Division. 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-02A 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION 
TO THE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT- MOBILE COMMAND 
CENTER VIDEO UPGRADE PROJECT. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Marble Falls finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
Marble Falls, that the City of Marble Falls Police Department Mobile Command 
Center Video Upgrade Project be operated for the fiscal year 2020-2021, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Marble Falls agrees to provide applicable matching funds 
for the said project as required by the FY 2020 CJAG Mobile Command Center 
Video Upgrade Project grant application; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Marble Falls agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of 
the Office of the Governor funds, the City of Marble Falls assures that the funds 
will be returned to the Office of the Governor in full, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Marble Falls designates the Mayor as the grantee’s 
authorized official.  The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, 
reject, alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that City Council of the City of Marble 
Falls, Texas approves submission of the grant application for the Marble Falls 
Police Department Mobile Command Center Video Upgrade Project grant to the 
Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division. 
 
Signed by: 
 
Passed and Approved this 18th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
 
Grant Number: 4017401 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________     ____________________ 
Christina McDonald                                                                        John Packer 
City Secretary       Mayor 
City of Marble Falls      City of Marble Falls 
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February 18, 2020 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(d) Approval of a replat of Lot 2-C, Barker Subdivision, and a Subdivision Waiver to 
Appendix B - Development Code, Article 6 - Subdivision Design and Land 
Development, Division 6.2 - Subdivision Design Standards, Section 6.2.6.B - 
Frontage on or Adjacent to Public Streets Required.  Valerie Kreger, Director of 
Development Services  
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Agenda Item No.:   6(d) 
Presenter:  Valerie Kreger, Director of Development Services 
Department:   Development Services 
Legal Review:  ☐ N/A 
 

AGENDA CAPTION 
 
Approval of a replat of Lot 2-C, Barker Subdivision, and a Subdivision Waiver to Appendix 
B - Development Code, Article 6 - Subdivision Design and Land Development, Division 6.2 
- Subdivision Design Standards, Section 6.2.6.B - Frontage on or Adjacent to Public Streets 
Required.   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
This item is for consideration of a subdivision waiver and a replat of Lot 2-C, Barker 
Subdivision. The existing lot has frontage on West Oak Ridge and existing access from 
US 281 by a 50 ft. access easement that passes through Lots 1-A and 3-A of the 
Barker Subdivision. 

The property was annexed into the City of Marble Falls by three separate ordinances: 
1973-O-2A, 1986-O-11A, and 1987-O-7A. The plat for the Barker Subdivision was 
approved by the City and recorded with the County in October of 2011. The Mutual 
Driveway and Access Easement, document number 201106496, dedicated 25 feet 
along the southern portion of Lot 1-A and 25 feet along the northern portion of Lot 3-A 
for a 50 ft. wide access easement. The access easement runs along Lots 1-A and 3-A 
from the US 281 right-of-way to Lot 2-C.  

Surrounding property to the north, south and west is zoned General Commercial (GC) 
and to the east is zoned Transitional Residential (TR). Additionally, the Comprehensive 
Plan Future Land Use designation for this and surrounding properties to the north, 
south and west is Corridor Commercial and to the east is Neighborhood Residential.  

The replat will split Lot 2-C into two lots, being Lots 2-D and 2-E. Lot 2-E will have 
frontage along West Oak Ridge Drive. Lot 2-D will become landlocked with no street 
frontage. The applicant is requesting a waiver to the requirement for the single 
proposed lot to front on a public street. Section 6.2.6.B of the subdivision regulations 
requires each lot proposed within a subdivision to have frontage onto or be adjacent to 
a dedicated, improved public street unless platted as an approved private street 
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subdivision. The applicant proposes that the existing 50-foot access easement through 
the adjacent properties serve as access to this landlocked property.  

The Code states the following general approval criteria shall be considered when 
reviewing waivers/suspensions to the subdivision regulations: 
1. Granting the waiver/suspension will not be detrimental to the public safety, health 

or welfare, and will not be injurious to other property or to the owners of other 
property, and the waiver/suspension will not prevent the orderly subdivision of 
other property in the vicinity;  

2. The conditions upon which the request for a waiver/suspension is based are 
unique to the property for which the waiver/suspension is sought, and are not 
applicable generally to other property;  

3. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape and/or topographical 
conditions of the specific property involved, a particular hardship to the property 
owner would result, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter 
of these regulations is carried out; and 

4. The waiver/suspension will not in any manner vary the provisions of the zoning 
ordinance or comprehensive plan or any other adopted plan(s) or ordinance(s) of 
the City. 

Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation and City Council action is required 
for any plats requiring a subdivision waiver. Minor replats and subdivision waivers do 
not require public hearing nor notification of surrounding property owners. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of the replat and 
subdivision waiver as presented 
 
Memo Contents: 

• Informational maps produced by City Staff Pages 23-24 

• Proposed Minor Replat Page 25 

• Subdivision Waiver Request Page 26 
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February 18, 2020 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(e) Approval of a Funding Agreement between the City of Marble Falls and the 
Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation for acquisition of property for 
future park use, being 110 and 114 Buena Vista.  Mike Hodge, City Manager 
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Agenda Item No.:  6(e) 
Presenter:  Mike Hodge, City Manager 
Department:  Administration 
Legal Review:  ☒  
 

AGENDA CAPTION 
 
Approval of a Funding Agreement between the City of Marble Falls and the Marble Falls 
Economic Development Corporation for acquisition of property for future park use, being 
110 and 114 Buena Vista.   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
At the February 5, 2020 EDC Meeting, the EDC board approved a funding agreement 
between the EDC and the City.   
 
This agreement will provide EDC funds of $650,000 toward the purchase of two properties 
on Buena Vista (110 and 114 Buena Vista).   
 
The approved EDC budget for FY 19/20 included $400,000 for land purchase, so the EDC 
will be requesting a mid-year budget amendment in the amount of $250,000 to complete 
the funding commitment. 
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February 18, 2020 
 

7. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

(a) Public Hearing, Discussion, and Action on Ordinance 2020-O-02C regarding the 
adoption of the 2015 edition of the International Swimming Pool and Spa Code; 
and amending Chapter 7 - Buildings and Building Regulations of the City of 
Marble Falls Code of Ordinances.  Valerie Kreger, Director of Development 
Services 
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Agenda Item No.: 7(a) 
Presenter:  Valerie Kreger, Director of Development Services 
Department:   Development Services 
Legal Review:   

AGENDA CAPTION 
Public Hearing, Discussion, and Action on Ordinance 2020-O-02C regarding the 
adoption of the 2015 edition of the International Swimming Pool and Spa Code; and 
amending Chapter 7 - Buildings and Building Regulations of the City of Marble Falls 
Code of Ordinances. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The purpose of this item is for the consideration and adoption of the 2015 edition of the 
ICC International Swimming Pool and Spa code. The code was taken out of the IRC 
2012 Code Appendix G and was replaced with its own code. This code has no new 
changes from the 2012 Appendix G code for swimming pools and adds requirements 
for public health spas and private spas. 

The Swimming Pool and Spa Code sets standards for the building of commercial and 
private swimming pools and their requirements regarding safety. The safety standards 
include the security of the area to protect easy access to the public mainly children 
from entering an area with a pool without the owner or responsible party’s knowledge. 
This code addresses inground as well as above ground pools along with spas. 

The Building Official has reviewed the 2015 edition of the ICC International Swimming 
Pool and Spa code, and has determined that adopting the 2015 ICC codes would be 
beneficial to the City and has not proposed any local amendments.   

The adoption of each of the ICC codes is reflected in the City’s Code of Ordinances in 
Chapter 7, Buildings and Building Regulations. Since this is a new or additional code 
adoption, a new section will be added for the Swimming Pool and Spa Code. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of Ordinance 2020-O-02C adopting the 2015 edition of the ICC International 
Swimming Pool and Spa Code; and amending Chapter 7 (Buildings and Building 
Regulations), of the City of Marble Falls Code of Ordinances. 

Memo Contents: 
Ordinance      Pages 2 – 4    
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ORDINANCE 2020-O-02C 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 7 (BUILDINGS 
AND BUILDING REGULATIONS), TO ADD ARTICLE XIV, SWIMMING 
POOL AND SPA CODE; AND ADOPTING THE 2015 EDITION OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL SWIMMING POOL AND SPA CODE; PROVIDING 
FOR REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING; 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Marble Falls, has determined the need 
to adopt modern, standardized building, plumbing, mechanical, energy conservation, 
fire protection, swimming pool and spa, fire, and fuel and gas codes for the community; 
and 

WHEREAS, these codes are adopted to safeguard the public health, safety, and 
general welfare; and 

WHEREAS, International Code Congress published the swimming pool and spa 
regulations as a separate code with the 2015 editions; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is of the opinion that the adoption of the ICC 
International Swimming Pool and Spa Code will benefit the community by providing for 
the prevention and mitigation of hazards, ensuring responsible construction and building 
regulations, and minimizing the loss of life, injury, and property. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS, THAT: 

SECTION I. PREAMBLE.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true 
and correct legislative and factual findings of the City of Marble Falls and are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

SECTION II. AMENDMENT. Except as herein amended, the Marble Falls Code 
of Ordinances shall remain in full force and effect. Chapter 7, Buildings and Building 
Regulations, is hereby amended to add Article XIV, Swimming Pool and Spa Code as 
follows: 

Sec. 7-332. Adoption of International Swimming Pool and Spa Code 

(a) The International Swimming Pool and Spa Code, 2015 Edition, as 
published by the International Code Council, is hereby adopted, and 
designated as the swimming pool and spa code of the City of Marble Falls, 
and is made a part hereof, as amended. 

(b) One (1) copy of the 2015 Edition of the International Swimming Pool and 
Spa Code is incorporated herein by reference and shall be filed in the office 
of development services for permanent record and inspection.  
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Secs. 7-333-7-340. – Reserved.  

SECTION III. REPEALER. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be cumulative 
of all other ordinances or parts of ordinances governing or regulating the same subject 
matter as that covered herein, provided, however, that all prior ordinances or parts of 
ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with any of the provisions of this Ordinance are 
hereby expressly repealed to the extent that such inconsistency is apparent.  This 
Ordinance shall not be construed to require or allow any act which is prohibited by any 
other ordinance. 

SECTION IV. PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. If any provision, section, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or application of same to any persons or 
set of circumstances is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, void, invalid, or 
unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance or its application to 
other persons or sets of circumstances shall not be affected herby, it being the intent of 
the City Council of the City of Marble Falls in adopting, and the Mayor in approving this 
Ordinance, that no portion hereof or provision or regulation contained herein shall 
become inoperative or fail by reason of any unconstitutionality or invalidity of any 
portion, provisions or regulation. 

SECTION V. PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING. It is hereby officially found and 
determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public 
as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was 
given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code. Notice was also provided as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 

SECTION VI. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
upon and after its date of adoption. 

DULY PASSED by the City Council of the City of Marble Falls, Texas, on the 18th 
day of February, 2020. 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
       
John Packer, Mayor 
City of Marble Falls 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Christina McDonald, City Secretary 
City of Marble Falls  
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(Seal) 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Patty L. Akers, City Attorney 
City of Marble Falls 
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Agenda Item No.:  7(b) 
Presenter:  Baron Sauls, Director of Finance 
Department:   Finance Department 
Legal Review:  ☐ Not Applicable ☒ 
 

AGENDA CAPTION 
 
Presentation, Discussion and Action on the acceptance of the FY 2018/19 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Audit. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
  
Chris Pruitt, C.P.A. from the firm of Pattillo, Brown and Hill will present the audit at the 
council meeting on Tuesday, February 18, 2020.  
 
The audit will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for 
review. The review will determine if the audit merits the award of “Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting” for the FY 2018/19. We have received the award since 
2004 and strive each year so that we may continue to receive this recognized award.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Honorable Mayor and  
   Members of the City Council 
City of Marble Falls, Texas 
 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Marble Falls, Texas as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated February 12, 2020. Professional 
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

 
 
Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated October 12, 2019, our responsibility, as described 
by professional standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the financial statements that have 
been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 
 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City of Marble Falls, Texas solely for 
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 

control. 
 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 

professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, 
we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.  
 

 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  
 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to 
you. 

 
 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 
 

The engagement team, others in our firm, and, as appropriate, our firm have complied with all 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.  
 

As a part of the engagement we assisted in preparing the financial statements and related notes to 

the financial statements of the City of Marble Falls, Texas in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 

accounting principles. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing 
Standards and such services were not conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Services.  
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In order to ensure we maintain our independence for performing these nonaudit services certain 
safeguards were applied to this engagement. Management assumed responsibility for the financial statements and 

related notes to the financial statements and any other nonaudit services we provided. Management 
acknowledged in the management representation letter our assistance with the preparation of the financial 

statements and related notes to the financial statements and that these items were reviewed and approved prior 
to their issuance and accepted responsibility for them. Further, the nonaudit services were overseen by an 
individual within management that has the suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluated the adequacy and 
results of the services; and accepted responsibility for them. 
 
 
Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices  

 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of 
the significant accounting policies adopted by the City of Marble Falls, Texas is included in Note I to the 
financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant 

accounting policies or their application during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. No matters have 

come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the 
methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting 
policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

 
Significant Accounting Estimates 
 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and 
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates 
are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the 
possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 
 
The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are: 

 
Management’s estimate of the useful lives of capital assets is based on the expected lifespan of the 

asset in accordance with standard guidelines. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop 

the estimate of useful lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as 
a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units. 

 

Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liabilities 
is based on actuarial assumptions which are determined by the demographics of the plan and future 
projections that the actuarial makes based on historical information of the plan and the investment market. 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension liability and OPEB liabilities 
and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and in 
relation to the applicable opinion units. 

  
Financial Statement Disclosures  
 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the City of 
Marble Falls, Texas’s financial statements relate to the net pension liability. The disclosures in the financial 

statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

 
 
Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 
 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 
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Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  
 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and 
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate 

them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate 
the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, 
account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable opinion unit. 
Management has corrected all identified misstatements. 
 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. None of 

the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were 
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole or applicable 
opinion units. 
 
 
Disagreements with Management 

 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, which could be significant to the City of Marble Falls, Texas’s financial statements or the auditor’s 
report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 
 
 

Representations Requested from Management 
 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
management representation letter dated February 12, 2020. 
 
 
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with 

other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 
 
 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 
 

In the normal course of our professional association with the City of Marble Falls, Texas we generally 
discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect 
the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as 
the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ auditors. 

 

 
New Accounting Pronouncements 
 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued the following statements which become 

effective for fiscal years 2020 and 2021. 
 
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities – This Statement improves guidance regarding the identification 

of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be 
reported. The focus is generally on whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and 
on the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. This Statement will become effective for the 
City in fiscal year 2020. 
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Statement No. 87, Leases – This Statement will improve the accounting and financial reporting for 
leases by governments by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities previously classified as 

operating leases. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are 
financing the right to use an underlying asset. Under the Statement a lessee is required to recognize a lease 

liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a 
deferred inflow of resource, enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about leasing activities. 
This Statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2021. 

 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of the 

City of Marble Falls, Texas and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 

 
Waco, Texas 
February 12, 2020 
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800 Third Street • Marble Falls, Texas 78654 
Phone:  (830) 693-3615 • Fax:  (830) 693-6737 

 

 
 
 
February 12, 2020 
 

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and the Citizens of Marble Falls: 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Marble Falls (the “City”) for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2019, is hereby submitted.  Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City.  To the best of our 
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner 

designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the City.  All 

disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been 
included. 
 
As required by the City’s charter, the financial statements have been audited by the firm of Pattillo, Brown & 
Hill, L.L.P., Certified Public Accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable 
assurances that the financial statements of the City of Marble Falls for the fiscal year ended September 30, 

2019 are free of material misstatement.  The independent audit involved examining on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 
unmodified opinion that the City of Marble Falls’ financial statements for fiscal year ended September 30, 
2019, are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 
 

In developing and evaluating the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal 
accounting controls.  These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the safeguarding 

of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and the reliability of financial records for preparing 
financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets.  The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the evaluation of 
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.  We believe that the City’s current 
system of internal controls adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of proper 

recording of financial transactions. 
 
GAAP requires management to provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal 
is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The City’s MD&A can be found 
immediately following the independent auditor’s report located at the front of the financial section of this 

report. 
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The City of Marble Falls’ financial policy is to maintain a minimum fund balance of 25% of the current operations 
and maintenance budget for the City departments within the General Fund. The Utility Fund emphasis is to 
provide sufficient funds to meet operating expenses and debt payments. We will closely monitor the trend on 
our major sources of funding, such as: sales taxes and property taxes; so that we may make adjustments if 

needed.  
 
PROFILE OF THE CITY 
 
Founded in 1887 by General Adam R. Johnson, Marble Falls is located in the heart of the Texas Hill Country on 
the Colorado River. The falls, for which the town was named, were used as a landmark by travelers and referred 
to as the “great falls” or the “marble falls” of the Colorado River as early as 1817. Population estimates for the 

City of Marble Falls reached 1,800 by 1896 and the first City officials were elected in 1907, when a mayor-
alderman form of government was instituted. 
 
Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the Mayor and six (6) Council 
Members. The Mayor and Council are responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the 
budget, appointing board and committee members and hiring the City Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal 

Judge. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, overseeing 
the day-to-day operations of the City government, and for appointing heads of various departments. The Mayor 
and Council Members are elected on an at-large, non-partisan basis and serve for a two-year term. 

 
The City provides a full range of municipal services including public safety (police and fire) maintenance of 
streets and infrastructure, water services, sanitation services, maintenance of the treated waste distribution 
system, and leisure services (parks and recreation). 

 
FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
The City of Marble Falls is centrally located 47 miles northwest of Austin and 85 miles north of San Antonio, at 
the intersection of State Highway 281 and Farm Road 1431, in the middle of the Highland Lakes area, the largest 
chain of lakes in Texas. Currently, the City contains approximately 13.6 square miles. 
 

Steady population growth has been experienced in the last decade with a present population estimated in excess 
of 6,900. Current and future subdivisions are designed on oversized lots, as well as smaller garden home areas, 
which result in spacious residential areas that complement the coveted rural setting. The City serves as a retail 
and tourist hub to the county and its surrounding area. 

 
The Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation (MFEDC) was formed in 1991 to spearhead the anticipated 

growth of the City. The MFEDC is funded by a voter approved, half cent sales tax, which is used to offer grants 
and other economic incentives to existing and new businesses. The MFEDC has successfully upgraded and 
improved the infrastructure of the City in preparation for commercial and retail businesses locating in Marble 
Falls. The MFEDC was voted favorably as a 4B corporation in 2007. 
 
Budgetary Controls. The City Charter of the City of Marble Falls establishes the fiscal year as October 1 through 
September 30. The Charter requires the City Manager to submit a proposed budget and accompanying budget 

message to the City Council each year. The proposed budget is presented to the City Council by the City Manager 
and Department Directors at a series of budget work sessions. Copies of the proposed budget are made available 
to the public and the press and the public hearing schedule is confirmed. Before the public hearings are held, 
notices of the public hearings on the proposed budget are posted and published in the newspaper. After public 
hearings at two consecutive regular City Council meetings, the Council may adopt the proposed budget, with or 
without an amendment. The budget ordinance is to be adopted no later than the 30th day of September and 
requires an affirmation vote of a majority of the Council. The City maintains budgetary control by adopting an 

annual operating budget for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Proprietary Fund and 
Capital Project Fund. Revisions that increase the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by Council. 
 
The City Council establishes long term financial goals each year as a part of the budgeting process. For FY 2019, 
the Council continued with the following goals: 
 

1. Maintain financial stability and continue the growth in cash reserves balance. 
2. Sustain existing programs at high service levels. 
3. Invest in the Parks and Recreation Program and facilities. 
4. Invest in Roadway Infrastructure and Street Maintenance. 
5. Invest in Water and Wastewater Service. 

 



 

 iii 

The City Council held a strategic planning workshop on May 14, 2019 for the purpose of developing a strategic 
vision that serves as a roadmap for future priorities. The Council agreed to focus on the areas listed below: 
 

1. Continue implementation of  the comprehensive street maintenance program. 

2. Manage flood recovery and mitigation effort following October 2018 Flood. 
3. Continue to lead and support the EDC’s efforts of developing the Hotel Conference Center project in 

the downtown. 
4. Complete multi-year staffing plan for the Police Department’s Patrol Division to address chronic 

overtime issues. 
5. Implement Park Phase 1B into 5-year Capital Improvement Plan for parks projects identified in the 

newly adopted Parks Master Plan. 

6. Begin design on Waste Water Treatment Plant to address capacity. 
7. Develop Sidewalk Master Plan. 
8. Develop Los Escondidos Annexation Plan. 
9. Develop plan to develop new City facilities including City Hall and Fire Station No. 2. 

 
 

The City continued to maintain a financial stability and added to General Fund cash reserves balance an amount 
in excess of $140,000 for FY 2019. The Parks and Recreation program added $30,000 of additional funds for 
their maintenance program. The Police Department added one new patrol officer to the force as well as 

replacement of four patrol vehicles. The Streets maintenance budget had an additional $50,000 for maintenance 
of streets. Water and Wastewater budgets also include funding for use on improvements to existing 
infrastructure and Wastewater Treatment Plant design. 
 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Marble Falls for its comprehensive 
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. This report must satisfy both Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and applicable legal 

requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program’s requirements and we are 

submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
 

Acknowledgements. The preparation of this report could not be accomplished on a timely basis without the 
efficient and dedicated endeavors of the entire staff of the City’s Finance Department and our independent 
auditors. We would like to express our sincere appreciation to all contributing employees. We would also wish 
to thank our Mayor and the members of the City Council for their support in planning and conducting the financial 
operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
Mike Hodge 
City Manager 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 
 
 
Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Marble Falls, Texas 
Marble Falls, Texas 

 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marble Falls, 
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, 

which collectively comprise the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinions. 
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2 

Opinions 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 

the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marble Falls, Texas, as of September 30, 2019, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 

 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension and OPEB information 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 

economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 

information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

 
Other Information 
 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility 

of management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 

prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 

assurance on them. 
 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 
12, 2020, on our consideration of the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and 

on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 
Waco, Texas  
February 12, 2020 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
As Management of the City of Marble Falls, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative 

overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. This 
information is not intended to be a complete statement of the City’s financial condition. We recommend and 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the accompanying 
transmittal letter and basic financial statements. 
 
 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 
• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Marble Falls exceeded its 

liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as of September 30, 2019, by $21,455,564 
(net position). Of this amount, ($1,994,779) is unrestricted net position. 

 
• The City’s net position decreased by $2,529,177. 

 
• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Marble Falls governmental funds 

reported combined ending fund balances of $12,984,956. $2,165,390 of this amount is 

unassigned and available for use within the City’s fund designation and policy. 
 
• As of September 30, 2019, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $2,165,390 

or 17.84% of total General Fund expenditures. 

 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. 
The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other 

supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s 
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. This statement 
combines and consolidates governmental funds current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) 
with capital assets and long-term obligations. Other non-financial factors should also be taken into 
consideration, such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure 

(i.e. roads, drainage improvements, storm sewer and water lines, etc.), to assess the overall financial 
condition of the City. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the fiscal 
year. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but not used compensated 

absences). Both the statement of net position and the statement of activities are prepared utilizing the accrual 
basis of accounting as opposed to the modified accrual basis used in prior reporting models. 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees (business-type activities). 

 
• Governmental activities include most of the City’s basic services (general government, 

public safety, public works and culture and recreation). Property taxes, sales taxes, and 
franchise fees primarily finance these activities. 
 

• Business-type activities include the City’s water and sewer system. Charges for services 
cover all or most of the cost for these services. 
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Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used by state and local governments to 

control and manage money for particular purposes and to ensure finance-related legal requirements. The City 
uses two fund types – governmental and proprietary. 
 

• Governmental funds – Similar to the governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental funds focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as 
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. The 

governmental fund statement provides a detailed short-term view of the City’s general 
government operations and helps you determine whether resources are available in the 
near future to finance City programs. Comparing the information presented for 
governmental funds with the information presented for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements will help the reader to better understand the long-
term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. The governmental funds 

balance sheet, statement of revenue and expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
include a reconciliation to provide such comparison. 
 

The City maintains 12 governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Economic Development 
Corporation Fund, Debt Service Fund, Hotel Conference Center Fund, and Parks 

Improvement Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. The other funds are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these 
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements found in 
this report. 
 

• Proprietary funds – The City maintains one proprietary fund. The City uses the 
Enterprise Fund for water and sewer operations. The Enterprise Fund reports the same 

functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statement. 

 
Reporting the City’s Fiduciary Responsibility 

 
The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the LaVentana Public Improvement District Trust Fund, Gregg Ranch 

Public Improvement District Trust Fund and Roper Ranch Public Improvement District Trust Fund. All of the 
City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in 
Fiduciary Net Position. The activities of this fund are excluded from the City’s government-wide financial 
statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for 
ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used for their intended purpose. The basic fiduciary fund 
financial statements can be found on pages 23 – 24 of this report. 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other Information 
 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents combining and 
individual fund statements and schedules that further support the information in the financial statements. These 
statements are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
The City’s net assets exceed liabilities by $21.5 million as of September 30, 2019. The largest portion of the 
City’s net position reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., land, building, equipment, improvements, 

construction in progress and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still 
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, these assets are not 
available for future spending. It should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
 
 

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS’ NET POSITION 

 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Current and other assets 16,464,332$  15,129,231$  2,233,979)$(   1,065,401)$(   14,230,353$  14,063,830$  

Capital assets 37,379,976 35,592,604 40,443,090 39,964,513 77,823,066 75,557,117 

        Total assets 53,844,308 50,721,835 38,209,111 38,899,112 92,053,419 89,620,947 

Deferred outflows of resources 1,995,865   877,997      781,921      682,562      2,777,786   1,560,559   

Current liabilities 3,851,333   3,451,678   1,475,312   1,419,108   5,326,645   4,870,786   

Noncurrent liabilities 40,571,533 35,967,654 23,886,034 22,765,494 64,457,567 58,733,148 

        Total liabilities 46,956,914 40,727,223 26,318,587 25,782,651 73,275,501 66,509,874 

Deferred inflows of resources 86,836       588,541      13,304       98,350       100,140      686,891      

Net position:

   Net investment,

        in capital assets 4,276,768   4,808,202   16,530,931 16,806,620 20,807,699 21,614,822 

   Restricted 2,642,644   3,279,017   -           -           2,642,644   3,279,017   

   Unrestricted 1,877,011   2,196,849   3,871,790)(   3,105,947)(   1,994,779)(   909,098)(      

        Total net position 8,796,423$    10,284,068$  12,659,141$  13,700,673$  21,455,564$  23,984,741$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

 
 

The restricted portion of the City’s net position (12.3%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is ($1,994,779). 

  
Analysis of the City’s Operations  
 
The following table provides a summary of the City’s operations for the year ended September 30, 2019. 

Governmental activities decreased the City of Marble Falls’ net position by $1,487,645, accounting for a 
14.5% decrease in net position. Business-type activities decreased the City’s net position by $1,041,532 
accounting for a 7.6% decrease in net position. The decrease in the business-type activities was due to the 
increase of expenses. 
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS’ CHANGES IN NET POSITION  
 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenues:

   Program revenues:

      Charges for services 975,912$       986,105$       5,158,479$    5,162,432$    6,134,391$    6,148,537$    

      Operating grants  

         and contributions 250,167      665,202      -           -           250,167      665,202      

      Capital grants

         and contributions -           -           115,000      125,260      115,000      125,260      

   General revenues:

      Property taxes 5,669,378   5,148,352   -           -           5,669,378   5,148,352   

      Sales taxes 9,515,880   8,762,727   -           -           9,515,880   8,762,727   

      Franchise taxes 591,561      583,840      -           -           591,561      583,840      

      Other taxes 822,438      755,357      -           -           822,438      755,357      

      Investment earnings 275,258      181,545      26,438       24,542       301,696      206,087      

      Gain on sale of assets -           485,962      -           -           -           485,962      

      Miscellaneous 926,591      91,585       -           -           926,591      91,585       

            Total revenues 19,027,185 17,660,675 5,299,917   5,312,234   24,327,102 22,972,909 

Expenses:

   General government 4,516,426   3,990,324   -           -           4,516,426   3,990,324   

   Public safety 7,825,499   5,587,223   -           -           7,825,499   5,587,223   

   Public works 3,868,741   3,630,999   -           -           3,868,741   3,630,999   

   Culture and recreation 3,032,406   1,592,267   -           -           3,032,406   1,592,267   

   Interest on long-term

      debt 1,418,977   1,288,511   -           -           1,418,977   1,288,511   

   Water and wastewater -           -           6,194,230   5,745,262   6,194,230   5,745,262   

            Total expenses 20,662,049 16,089,324 6,194,230   5,745,262   26,856,279 21,834,586 

Increases (decreases) in net  

   assets before transfers 1,634,864)(   1,571,351   894,313)(      433,028)(      2,529,177)(   1,138,323   

Transfers 147,219      338,950      147,219)(      338,950)(      -           -           

Change in net assets 1,487,645)(   1,910,301   1,041,532)(   771,978)(      2,529,177)(   1,138,323   

Net assets, beginning 10,284,068 8,691,906   13,700,673 14,539,829 23,984,741 23,231,735 

Prior period adjustment -           318,139)(      -           67,178)(       -           385,317)(      

Net assets, ending 8,796,423$    10,284,068$  12,659,141$  13,700,673$  21,455,564$  23,984,741$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

 
 

Government Funds 
 
In the General Fund, fund balance increased by $202,746. The increase was due mainly to an increase in sales 
tax revenue and property tax revenue for FY 2019. 
 
The Economic Development Corporation Fund balance decreased by $685,118. The decrease is due to an 

increase in capital outlay expenditures for FY 2019.  
 
The Debt Service Fund balance increased by $1,151,917 due to an increase in property tax revenue. 

 
The Hotel Conference Center Fund decreased by $208,063 due to increased capital outlay expenditures. 
 
The Parks Improvement decreased by $187,390 due to increased capital outlay expenditures.  

 
Proprietary Fund 
 
Unrestricted net position of the proprietary fund (water and utility) was ($3,871,790). The net position of the 
Water and Utility Fund decreased by $1,041,532. This decrease was due to an increase in expenses. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The City made revisions to the original appropriations approved by the City Council. These changes resulted in 
an increase in budgeted expenditures in the amount of $531,360 from the original budget of $11,665,942 to 

the revised budget of $12,197,302 or 4.6% increase. The majority of this increase was due to an increase in 
administration expenditures. 
 
The variance between the final amended budget and actual expenditures was a positive $62,077. General 
Government actual expenditures were above budgeted expenditures by $5,048. Additionally, Street 
expenditures were less than the budget by $70,411. This was mainly due to personnel services costs. 
 

Capital Assets 
 
The following activity represents major capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019: 
 

• Continued construction of Phase 1A for Park Improvements. Total spent in FY 2019 was 
$2,733,976. 

 
• Continued the construction phase of the Water Plant Upgrade. Total spent in FY 2019 was 

$316,803. 

 
• Continued work on Phase III construction of the Business Technology Park, at a cost of 

$448,765.  
 

• Began work on the installation of new AMI Water Meters, at a cost of $1,749,383. 
 

Additional information regarding capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements on page 
33. 
 

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS’ CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END 
 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land 9,567,895$    8,983,831$    681,006$       681,006$       10,248,901$    9,664,837$      

Buildings and improvements 63,771,402 59,655,770 67,074,051 64,626,601 130,845,453 124,282,371 

Machinery and equipment 5,911,634   6,443,705   1,446,145   1,432,919   7,357,779     7,876,624     

Less: accumulated 

   depreciation 41,870,955)( 39,490,702)( 28,758,112)( 26,776,013)( 70,629,067)(   66,266,715)(   

    Total capital assets, net 37,379,976$  35,592,604$  40,443,090$  39,964,513$  77,823,066$    75,557,117$    

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

 

Debt Administration 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt and notes payable of $60,345,000. Of this 
amount, $36,970,090 represents bonded debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City and $23,374,910 
represents payables secured by water and wastewater revenues. 
 

OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR-END 

 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Bonds 36,970,090$  36,167,840$  23,374,910$  22,627,160$  60,345,000$  58,795,000$  

            Total 36,970,090$  36,167,840$  23,374,910$  22,627,160$  60,345,000$  58,795,000$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
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The City’s General Obligation, Tax and Certificates of Obligation bond ratings are listed below. 
 

Moody's Standard

Investors Service & Poor's

General Obligation Bonds A3 AA-  
 

During the year the City issued new debt. Additional information on the City’s long term-debt can be found in 
the notes to financial statements of this report on pages 34 - 37. 
 
 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 

 
The entire area surrounding the City of Marble Falls continues to experience unprecedented growth. The City’s 
population is estimated to be in excess of 6,900 in 2019. The City is continuing to focus on Economic 
Development initiatives.  
 
The City’s largest source of revenue in the General Fund is Sales Tax.  The City realized an increase of 8.6% 

from the prior year revenue of $6,571,870 to $7,136,935.  The 2020 estimate is conservatively projected at 

$7,384,976.  The Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation is funded by a voter approved, half-cent 
sales tax, which is used to offer grants and other economic incentives to existing and new businesses.  The 
City’s financial management policies sets the guideline to maintain the fund balance and net position of the 
various operating funds at levels sufficient to protect the City’s creditworthiness as well as its financial position 
from unforeseeable emergencies. 
 

The City’s second largest source of revenue in the General Fund is ad valorem taxes.  The City’s tax rate is 
$0.6100.  This rate consists of a maintenance and operations (M&O) tax rate of $0.2569 and an Interest and 
Sinking (debt service) tax rate of $0.3531.  The rate was set based on a net position value of $892,093,318.  
The assessed values increased about 15% for FY 2019.   
 
Water revenues for 2019 are budgeted at $3,514,500 which is an increase of 6% over the prior year.  
Wastewater revenues are budgeted at $1,864,500, representing a 2% increase over the prior year.  The City 

of Marble Falls increased water rates by 3% for FY 2019.  
 
 

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors, and creditors with a general 

overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have 
questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Finance Department; 800 Third Street; 
Marble Falls, Texas 78654 or call Baron Sauls (830) 693-3615 or e-mail bsauls@marblefallstx.gov.   
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

 

Governmental Business-type  
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

   Cash and investments 10,098,650$   -$             10,098,650$      
   Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
      Taxes 1,943,965    -            1,943,965       
      Customer accounts 1,004,873    830,672       1,835,545       
      Other 2,289           -            2,289             
   Due from other governments 62,937         -            62,937           
   Internal balances 3,350,370    3,350,370)(    -               
   Inventories -            285,719       285,719          
   Prepaid items 1,248           -            1,248             
   Capital assets:

 Land 9,567,895    681,006       10,248,901     
       Buildings and improvements 63,771,402  67,074,051  130,845,453   
       Machinery and equipment 5,911,634    1,446,145    7,357,779       
       Accumulated depreciation 41,870,955)(  28,758,112)(  70,629,067)(     

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 37,379,976  40,443,090  77,823,066     

Total assets 53,844,308  38,209,111  92,053,419     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

   Deferred outflow related to pensions 1,544,177    237,703       1,781,880       
   OPEB - TMRS supplemental death benefit 35,650         5,487           41,137           
   OPEB - Retiree health plan 18,402         2,750           21,152           
   Deferred loss on bond refunding 397,636       535,981       933,617          

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,995,865    781,921       2,777,786       

LIABILITIES
   Accounts payable 2,067,880    209,435       2,277,315       
   Accrued liabilities 144,316       24,937         169,253          
   Due to others 69,995         69,582         139,577          
   Customer deposits 27,224         540,458       567,682          
   Accrued interest 224,633       112,829       337,462          
   Noncurrent liabilities:
     Due within one year

General and certificates of obligation 3,305,000    1,380,000    4,685,000       
Tax notes 175,000       
Capital lease 147,707       54,166         201,873          
Compensated absences 216,486       40,068         256,554          
OPEB - TMRS supplemental 2,310           356              2,666             

death benefit
OPEB - Retiree health plan 4,830           722              5,552             

     Due in more than one year
General and certificates of obligation 33,665,090  22,974,190  56,639,280     
Tax notes 995,000       
Bond premiums 1,071,639    -            1,071,639       
Capital lease 414,239       212,091       626,330          
Compensated absences 649,458       120,205       769,663          
Net pension liability 3,068,031    472,277       3,540,308       
OPEB - TMRS supplemental 325,295       50,074         375,369          

death benefit
OPEB - Retiree health plan 382,781       57,197         439,978          

Total liabilities 46,956,914  26,318,587  73,275,501     

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 9



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Governmental Business-type  
Activities Activities Total

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

   Deferred inflow related to pensions 55,295$          8,511$            63,806$            

   OPEB - TMRS supplemental death benefit 17,517         2,697           20,214           

   OPEB - Retiree health plan 14,024         2,096           16,120           

Total deferred inflows of resources 86,836         13,304         100,140          

NET POSITION
   Net investment in capital assets 4,276,768    16,530,931  20,807,699     
   Restricted for:
      Economic development 1,668,181    -            1,668,181       
      Debt service 117,407       -            117,407          
      Public safety 161,966       -            161,966          
      Culture and recreation 695,090       -            695,090          
   Unrestricted 1,877,011    3,871,790)(    1,994,779)(       

Total net position 8,796,423$     12,659,141$   21,455,564$      

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 10



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

  

Operating Capital
 Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
 

Primary government:  
   Governmental activities:  
      General government 4,516,426$     444,108$     30,206$      -$          
      Public safety 7,825,499   241,106    206,408    -         
      Public works 3,868,741   190,251    -         -         

      Culture and recreation 3,032,406   100,447    13,553     -         

      Interest on long-term debt 1,418,977   -         -         -         

Total governmental activities 20,662,049  975,912    250,167    -         

 
Business-type activities:

     Water and sewer 6,194,230   5,158,479 -         115,000    

Total business-type activities 6,194,230   5,158,479 -         115,000    

                   

Total primary government 26,856,279$   6,134,391$  250,167$     115,000$     

 

 General revenues:
      Taxes:
            Property, levied for general purposes
            Property, levied for debt service  

           Sales  
            Franchise  

           Other
      Investment earnings
      Miscellaneous
 Transfers

                  Total general revenues and transfers

                          Change in net position  

 Net position, beginning  

 Net position, ending

Program Revenues

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 11



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Governmental Business-type  
Activities Activities Total

4,042,112)$(     -$              4,042,112)$(     
7,377,985)(     -             7,377,985)(     
3,678,490)(     -             3,678,490)(     

2,918,406)(     -             2,918,406)(     

1,418,977)(     -             1,418,977)(     

19,435,970)(   -             19,435,970)(   

-             920,751)(        920,751)(        

-             920,751)(        920,751)(        

19,435,970)(   920,751)(        20,356,721)(   

  

2,279,069     -             2,279,069     
3,390,309     -             3,390,309     

9,515,880     -             9,515,880     

591,561        -             591,561        

822,438        -             822,438        

275,258        26,438         301,696        

926,591        -             926,591        

147,219        147,219)(        -             

17,948,325   120,781)(        17,827,544   

1,487,645)(     1,041,532)(     2,529,177)(     

10,284,068   13,700,673   23,984,741   

8,796,423$      12,659,141$    21,455,564$    

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

12



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Economic

Development Debt 
General Corporation Service

ASSETS 

Cash and investments -$            1,445,407$   1,113,786$   

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
   Property taxes 23,443       -           126,038     
   Other taxes 1,207,173  397,030     -           

   Accounts 209,406     -           -           

   Other 90              39              -           

Due from other governments 62,937       -           -           

Due from other funds 2,591,439  -           -           

Prepaid items 1,248         -           -           

            Total assets 4,095,736  1,842,476  1,239,824  

LIABILITIES  
   Accounts payable 1,543,148  170,372     -           
   Accrued liabilities 140,020     3,923         -           
   Due to other funds -           -           51,237       
   Due to others 69,995       -           -           

   Customer deposits 27,224       -           -           

            Total liabilities 1,780,387  174,295     51,237       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

   Unavailable revenue - property taxes 17,615       -           117,407     

   Unavailable revenue - court fines and fees 105,272     -           -           

            Total deferred inflows of resources 122,887     -           117,407     

FUND BALANCES  
      Nonspendable 1,248         -           -           
      Restricted -           1,668,181  1,071,180  
      Assigned for subsequent year's budget 25,824       -           -           

      Unassigned 2,165,390  -           -           

            Total fund balances 2,192,462  1,668,181  1,071,180  

            Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

              resources and fund balances 4,095,736$   1,842,476$   1,239,824$   

      Net position of governmental activities

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported

in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds. Losses on refunding of bonds and the premium on issuance of bonds

payable are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are

reported as unavailable resources in the governmental funds balance sheet, but are recognized as

revenue in the statement of activities.

The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are not included in the fund financial statements, but

are included in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position.

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 13



Hotel 

Conference Parks Other Total
Center Improvement Governmental Governmental

5,840,773$    550,529$          1,013,955$    9,964,450$        

-              
-           -              -           149,481          
-           -              190,281      1,794,484       

-           -              -           209,406          

-           -              2,160         2,289             

-           -              -           62,937           

638,119      -              226,092      3,455,650       

-           -              -           1,248             

6,478,892   550,529         1,432,488   15,639,945     
-              

-           333,074         21,286        2,067,880       
-           -              373            144,316          
-           54,043          -           105,280          
-           -              -           69,995           

-           -              -           27,224           

-           387,117         21,659        2,414,695       

-           -              -           135,022          

-           -              -           105,272          

-           -              -           240,294          

-           -              -           1,248             
6,478,892   163,412         1,410,829   10,792,494     

-           -              -           25,824           

-           -              -           2,165,390       

6,478,892   163,412         1,410,829   12,984,956     

6,478,892$    550,529$          1,432,488$    

  

37,379,976     

1,035,761       

134,200          

42,738,470)(     

8,796,423$        
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Economic
Development Debt 

General Corporation Service
REVENUES
   Property taxes 2,267,850$      -$               3,373,129$   
   Sales taxes 7,136,935     2,378,945     -           
   Hotel/motel taxes -             -              -           
   Mixed beverage taxes 64,018         -              -           
   Franchise fees 591,561        -              -           
   Fines and forfeitures 264,229        -              -           
   Permits and fees 266,120        43,698          -           
   Intergovernmental 362,653        30,206          -           

   Investment earnings 18,012         33,051          23,582       

   Other 157,191        375,000        -           

            Total revenues 11,128,569   2,860,900     3,396,711  

EXPENDITURES
   Current:
      General government 2,744,149     655,174        -           
      Public safety 5,932,183     -              -           
      Public works 1,522,838     -              -           
      Culture and recreation 1,046,036     -              -           
   Capital outlay 647,200        1,852,373     -           
   Debt service:

      Principal 201,258        520,000        2,700,000  

      Interest and fiscal charges 41,561         400,368        925,662     

      Bond issuance costs -             -              34,900       

            Total expenditures 12,135,225   3,427,915     3,660,562  

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,006,656)(     567,015)(        263,851)(     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)   
   Debt proceeds 375,900        -              1,170,000  
   Premium on bond issuance 13,832         -              -           

   Sale of capital assets 44,845         123,767        -           

   Proceeds from insurance 470,677        7,054            -           

   Transfers in 419,848        -              245,768     

   Transfers out 115,700)(        248,924)(        -           

            Total other financing sources (uses) 1,209,402     118,103)(        1,415,768  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 202,746        685,118)(        1,151,917  

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,989,716     2,353,299     80,737)(       

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 2,192,462$      1,668,181$      1,071,180$   

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 15



Hotel
Conference Parks Other Total

Center Improvement Governmental Governmental

-$            -$                -$                5,640,979$        
-           -               -               9,515,880       
-           -               755,703          755,703          
-           -               -               64,018           
-           -               -               591,561          
-           -               125,087          389,316          
-           -               -               309,818          
-           -               32,928           425,787          

166,937     -               33,676           275,258          

-           4,152             -               536,343          

166,937     4,152             947,394          18,504,663     

-           -               11,024           3,410,347       
-           -               56,221           5,988,404       
-           -               -               1,522,838       
-           -               568,011          1,614,047       

375,000     2,955,350       477,075          6,306,998       

-           -               -               3,421,258       

-           75,673 10,187           1,453,451       

-           -               -               34,900           

375,000     3,031,023       1,122,518       23,752,243     

208,063)(     3,026,871)(       175,124)(          5,247,580)(       

-           3,257,800       438,550          5,242,250       
-           119,873          16,137           149,842          

-           -               -               168,612          

-           -               672                478,403          

-           -               31,900           697,516          

-           -               250,473)(          615,097)(          

-           3,377,673       236,786          6,121,526       

208,063)(     350,802          61,662           873,946          

6,686,955  187,390)(          1,349,167       12,111,010     

6,478,892$   163,412$           1,410,829$        12,984,956$      
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (pages 11

- 12) are different because:

      Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (pages 15 - 16) 873,946$        

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful

lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital

outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 1,826,743    

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources

are not reported as revenues in the funds. 44,119         

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term

debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither

transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. This amount is the net effect of

these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 2,036,281)(    

Certain pension expenditures are not expended in the government-wide financial

statements and recorded as deferred resource outflows. This item relates to

contributions made after the measurement date. Additionally, a portion of the City’s

unrecognized deferred resource outflows related to the pension liability were

amortized. 2,137,471)(    

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of certain internal service

funds is reported with governmental activities. 64,800         

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. 123,501)(       

Change in net position of governmental activities (pages  11 - 12) 1,487,645)$(    

 

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 17



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities

 Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Water and Utility Equipment Replacement

ASSETS
   Current assets:
      Cash and investments -$               134,200$                    
      Accounts receivable, net of allowance 830,672        -                         

      Inventories 285,719        -                         

            Total current assets 1,116,391     134,200                   

   Noncurrent assets:

      Capital assets:
          Land 681,006        -                         
          Buildings and improvements 67,074,051    -                         
          Machinery and equipment 1,446,145     95,600                     

          Accumulated depreciation 28,758,112)(    -                         

            Total capital assets 40,443,090    95,600                     

            Total noncurrent assets 40,443,090    95,600                     

            Total assets 41,559,481    229,800                   

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

   Deferred outflow related to pensions 237,703        -                         

   OPEB obligation - TMRS supplemental death benefit 5,487 -                         
   OPEB obligation - Retiree health plan 2,750            

   Deferred loss on bond refunding 535,981        -                         

              Total deferred outflows of resources 781,921        -                         

LIABILITIES 
   Current liabilities:
      Accounts payable 209,435        -                         
      Accrued liabilities 24,937          -                         
      Due to other funds 3,350,370     -                         
      Customer deposits 540,458        -                         
      Due to others 69,582          -                         
      Accrued interest 112,829        -                         

      Compensated absences 40,068          -                         
      Capital leases 54,166          -                         
      Bonds payable 1,380,000     -                         

 OPEB obligation - TMRS supplemental death benefit 356               -                         

 OPEB obligation - Retiree health plan 722               -                         

            Total current liabilities 5,782,923      -                         

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 18



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities

 Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Water and Utility Equipment Replacement

LIABILITIES 
   Noncurrent liabilities:
      Compensated absences 120,205$         -$                          
      Capital leases 212,091 -                         
      Bonds payable 22,974,190    -                         
      Net pension liability 472,277        -                         

OPEB obligation - TMRS supplemental death benefit 50,074 -                         

OPEB obligation - Retiree health plan 57,197          -                         

            Total noncurrent liabilities 23,886,034    -                         

            Total liabilities 29,668,957    -                         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

   Deferred inflow related to pensions 8,511 -                         
   OPEB obligation - TMRS supplemental death benefit 2,697            -                         

   OPEB obligation - Retiree health plan 2,096            -                         

              Total deferred inflows of resources 13,304          -                         

NET POSITION

   Net investment in capital assets 16,530,931    95,600                     

   Unrestricted 3,871,790)(     134,200                   

            Total net position 12,659,141$     229,800$                    

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 19



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities

 Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Water and Utility Equipment Replacement

OPERATING REVENUES
   Water and utility charges 5,041,932$               -$                          

   Miscellaneous 116,547                 -                         

            Total operating revenues 5,158,479              -                         

OPERATING EXPENSES
   Personnel services 1,707,195              -                         

   Supplies 499,358                 -                         
   Repairs and maintenance 663,690                 -                         
   Purchased and contracted services 424,661                 -                         
   Other services and charges 215,712                 -                         

   Depreciation 1,982,099              -                         

            Total operating expenses 5,492,715              -                         

OPERATING LOSS 334,236)(                 -                         

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
   Investment earnings 26,438                   -                         

   Interest and fiscal charges 701,515)(                 -                         

            Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 675,077)(                 -                         

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 115,000                 -                         

INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 894,313)(                 -                         

TRANSFERS OUT 362,000)(                 -                         

TRANSFERS IN 214,781                 64,800                     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,041,532)(              64,800                     

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 13,700,673            165,000                   

NET POSITION, ENDING 12,659,141$             229,800$                    

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 20



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities

 Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Water and Utility Equipment Replacement

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
   Cash received from customers and users 5,058,521$     -$                          
   Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 1,292,904)(    -                         

   Cash paid to employees for services 1,359,988)(    -                         

            Net cash provided by operating activities 2,405,629     -                         

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

   Transfers to other funds 362,000)(       -                         

   Transfers from other funds 214,781       64,800                     

            Net cash used by noncapital financing activities 147,219)(       64,800                     

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

   Acquisition of capital assets 2,460,676)(    55,600)(                     
   Capital contributions 115,000       -                         
   Principal repayments on long-term debt 776,124       -                         

   Interest and fiscal charges paid on debt 715,296)(       -                         

            Net cash used by capital and related 2,284,848)(    55,600)(                     

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

   Interest and investment earnings 26,438         -                         

            Net cash provided by investing activities 26,438         -                         

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -            9,200                       

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING -            125,000                   

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING -$             134,200$                    

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 21



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities

 Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Water and Utility Equipment Replacement

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net 
   cash used by operating activities:
      Operating loss 334,236)$(       -$                          
      Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
         to net cash used by operating activities:
            Depreciation and amortization 1,982,099    -                         
            Changes in assets and liabilities:
               Decrease (increase) in assets:

                  Customer receivable 108,237)(       -                         
                  Other receivable 25               
                  Inventory 26,068)(         -                         
                  Net pension asset 599,473       
                  Deferred outflow related to pensions 173,250)(       -                         
               Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
                  Accounts payable 699,571)(       -                         
                  Accrued liabilities 8,589           -                         
                  OPEB net pension obligation 15,639)(         -                         
                  Customer deposits 8,279           -                         
                  Due to others 55,676         -                         
                  Deferred inflow related to pensions 89,839)(         -                         

                  Deferred inflow related to OPEB 4,793           -                         

                  Compensated absences payable 17,873         -                         
   
               Net cash provided by operating activities 2,405,629$     -$                          

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 22
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Total Trust Funds

ASSETS

   Cash and cash equivalents 126,825$             

            Total assets 126,825            

LIABILITIES

   Accounts payable 135,666$             

NET POSITION

   Held in trust 8,841)$(                

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 23



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Total Trust Funds

ADDITIONS
   Property tax assessment 45,535$                    

   Investment earnings 10,878                   

            Total additions 56,413                   

DEDUCTIONS
   Purchased and contracted services 66,221                   

   Miscellaneous expense 39,461                   

            Total deductions 105,682                 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 49,269)(                   

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 40,428                   

NET POSITION, ENDING 8,841)$(                     

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 24
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
 
 
 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
The City of Marble Falls is a home rule municipality operating under its own charter since August 9, 1986. 
The charter provides that the City operate under the council/manager form of government. The City 

Manager, appointed by the seven-member elected Council, is the Chief Administrative Officer of the City. 
The City provides the following services: public safety, street maintenance, refuse collection, recreation 
programs, municipal court, public health, community development, public improvements, water and sewer 
services, and general administrative services. 

 
Reporting Entity 

 
As required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASBS) No. 14 and 39, these 
financial statements have been prepared based on considerations regarding the potential for inclusion 

of other entities, organizations, or functions as part of the City’s financial reporting entity.  
 

Consideration regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or functions in the 
City’s financial reporting entity is based on criteria prescribed by GASBS No. 14 and 39. These same 

criteria are evaluated in considering whether the City is a part of any other governmental or other type 
of reporting entity. The overriding elements associated with prescribed criteria considered in determining 
that the City’s financial reporting entity status is that of a primary government are that it has a 
separately elected governing body; it is legally separate; and it is financially independent of other state 
and local governments. Additional prescribed criteria under GASB No. 14 and No. 39 include 
considerations pertaining to organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; 
and considerations pertaining to other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 

relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

 
As a result of applying the entity definition criteria of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 

the City has included the Economic Development Corporation as a component unit in these financial 
statements. The Corporation is presented as a blended component unit. The Economic Development 

Corporation is managed by a board of directors made up of 7 members appointed by the City Council. 
The Component unit’s governing body is substantially the same as the governing body of the primary 
government. The City Council requires that the Corporation be responsible for the proper discharge of 
its duties. The Board shall determine its policies and direction within the limitation of the duties imposed 
by applicable laws, the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, budget and fiduciary responsibilities. The City 
is entitled to and can otherwise access all of the resources of the Economic Development Corporation. 
Additionally, as the City is considered a primary government for financial reporting purposes, its 

activities are not considered a part of any other governmental or other type of reporting entity. Complete 
financial statements for the Corporation may be obtained at the entity’s administrative offices. 
 
Government-wide Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the 

most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 

segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenue are reported instead as general revenue. 

 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns 
in the fund financial statements. 

 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 

timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 

current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenue to be available if collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal 
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and 
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, sales taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are 

all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal 
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received 
by the City. 

 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  

 
The Economic Development Corporation Fund is used to account for the use of 4B sales 
tax revenues that must be used in compliance with statutory restrictions set forth by the 
state legislature.  

 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for revenue collected for purposes of paying 
interest on, and retiring, long-term debt including bonds, long-term tax notes, etc.  

 
The Hotel Conference Center Fund is used to account for the bond proceeds and the 
expenditures for the construction of the Hotel Conference Center.  
 
The Parks Improvement Fund is used to account for the financing sources and 

expenditures related to the Parks Improvement project. 
 

The City reports the following major enterprise fund: 
 

The Water and Utility Fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s water and 
wastewater operations. 

 
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

 
Internal Service Funds account equipment replacement services provided to other 
departments on a cost reimbursement basis. 
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Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in trust 
for individuals, private organizations and other governments. 
 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 

statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s water and utility function and 
various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenue reported for the various functions concerned. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 

Water and Utility Enterprise Fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for 
the enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue 
and expenses. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 

restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity 

 
 Cash and Investments 

 
Cash and investments include cash on hand, deposits with financial institutions, certificates of deposit, 

and privately managed public funds investment pools (LOGIC & Texas Class).  
 

The City’s general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-
earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning 
investment contract using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is 
significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is 
reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists 

which guarantees a higher value. The term “short-term” refers to investments, which have a remaining 
term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term “nonparticipating” means that the investment’s 
value does not vary with market interest rate changes. 

 

The City maintains a pooled cash and investments account for all funds of the City. Each fund’s positive 
equity in the pooled cash account is presented as “cash and investments” in the financial statements. 

Negative cash balances have been reclassified and are reflected as interfund accounts payable. Interest 
income and interest expense are allocated to each respective individual fund monthly based on their 
representative fund balances. 

 
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

 

Receivables and Payables 
 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or “advance to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in 

the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 
 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance 
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation 
and are not expendable available financial resources. 

 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts 
receivable in excess of 180 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles. 
The property tax receivable allowance is equal to 10 percent of outstanding property taxes at September 
30, 2019. 
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Ad valorem property taxes attach as enforceable liens as of January 1. The City’s property tax is levied 
each October 1 on the assessed value listed on the previous January 1 for all real and personal property 
located in the City. Property taxes are payable on October 1 and are considered delinquent on February 
1. The adjusted tax levy for October 2018 was $5,659,090. The tax assessment of October 1, 2017 sets 

a tax levy at $0.6150 per $100 of assessed valuation at 100% of assumed market value. Of this amount, 
$0.3671 was allocated to debt service. 
 
Legislation has been passed by the Texas Legislature that affects the method of property assessment and 
tax collection in the City. This legislation, with certain exceptions, exempts intangible personal property 
and household goods. In addition, this legislation creates a “Property Tax Code” and provides, among 
other things, for the establishment of countywide appraisal districts and for a state property tax board, 

which commenced operation in January 1980. 
 

The value of property within the appraisal district must be reviewed at least every three years. The City 
may challenge appraised values established by the appraisal district through various appeals and, if 
necessary, legal action. Under this legislation, the City continues to set tax rates on City property. 
However, if the effective tax rate, excluding tax rates for bonds and other contractual obligations and 

adjusted for new improvements, exceeds the rate for the previous year by more than 8%, qualified 
voters of the City may petition for an election to determine whether to limit the tax rate to no more 
than 8% above the tax rate of the previous year. 

 
Inventories and Prepaid Items 

 
All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental 

funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.  
 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

 
Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements. The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 

estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition 
value. 

 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. 

 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful 
lives: 

 

Assets Years

Buildings 20-50

Improvements 5-50

Equipment 5-10

Water and sewer system 40-50  
 

General infrastructure assets acquired prior to October 1, 2004, are not reported in the basic statements. 
General infrastructure assets include all roads, bridges, and other infrastructure assets acquired 
subsequent to October 1, 2004. 

 
Compensated Absences 

 
The City’s employees earn vacation and sick leave which may either be taken or accumulated, up to 
certain amounts, until paid upon resignation or retirement. All vacation, comp time, personal leave, and 
sick leave pay are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements. Upon termination, an employee is paid for 100% of their accrued vacation, comp time, and 
personal leave pay and for 50% of accrued sick leave pay. 
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Long-term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 

governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  

 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts 
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 

Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. 
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, pension related deferred outflows and inflows of 

resources, and pension expense, City specific information about its Fiduciary Net Position in the Texas 
Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions 

are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions 
are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 
TMRS Supplemental Death Benefits Fund. The City participates in the Texas Municipal Retirement 
System Supplemental Death Benefit Fund (TMRS SDBF), which is an optional single-employer defined 
benefit life insurance plan that is administered by TMRS. It provides death benefits to active and, if 
elected, retired employees of participating employers. Contribution rates are determined annually for 
each participating municipality as a percentage of that City’s covered payroll. The death benefit for 

retirees is considered an other-postemployment benefit (OPEB). The OPEB program is an unfunded trust 
because the SDBF trust covers both actives and retirees and is not segregated. The Total OPEB Liability 
of the plan has been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full 
accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the Total OPEB Liability, deferred 

inflows and outflows of resources, and OPEB expense. Benefit payments are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report 
a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 

The City has the following items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
 

• Deferred charges on refunding – A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the 
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized 
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 

 
• Pension and Other Post-employment Benefit contributions after measurement date – These 

contributions are deferred and recognized in the following fiscal year. 
 

• Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension and other post-employment benefit assets 
– This difference is deferred and amortized over a closed five year period.  
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In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report 
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows or resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so 
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two types of 

items classified as deferred inflows of resources. One of which arises only under a modified accrual basis 
of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is 
reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable 
revenues from two sources: property taxes and municipal court fines. These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The other item 
is only recorded in the full accrual basis of accounting and results from the difference between expected 
and actual pension expense. This difference is deferred and recognized over the estimated average 

remaining lives of all members determined as of the measurement date. 
 

Net Position 
 

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and 
liabilities. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of 

accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the 
acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding back unspent proceeds. Net 
position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through the 

enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors 
or laws or regulations of other governments. 

 
Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ 
from those estimates. 

 

 
 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the  

Government-wide Statement of Net Position 
 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance – total 
governmental funds and net position – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains, “Long-term liabilities, including 
bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the 
funds.” The details of this $(42,738,470) difference are as follows: 

 

General obligation bonds 28,345,090)$(     

Sales tax revenue bonds 8,625,000)(      

Tax notes 1,170,000)(      

Deferred loss on refunding debt issuance 397,636         

Bond premiums 1,071,639)(      

TMRS net pension 1,579,149)(      

OPEB - TMRS supplemental death benefit 309,472)(         

OPEB - Retiree health plan 383,233)(         

Capital lease 561,946)(         

Compensated absences 865,944)(         

Accrued interest payable 224,633)(         

   Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total

      governmental funds to arrive at net assets - 

      governmental activities 42,738,470)$(     
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Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue,  
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of 
Activities 

 

The governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances – total governmental fund and changes in net 
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One 
element of that reconciliation explains, “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful 
lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $1,826,743 difference are as follows: 

 

Capital outlay 4,998,260$  

Depreciation expense 3,171,517)( 

   Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances -

      total governmental funds  to arrive at changes in net

      assets of governmental activities 1,826,743$  
 

 
Another element of that reconciliation states, “Revenues in the statement of activities that do not 

provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.” The details of this 
$44,119 difference are as follows: 

 
Property taxes 28,399$  

Municipal court 15,720 

   Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances -

      total governmental funds  to arrive at changes in net

      assets of governmental activities 44,119$  
 

 
Another element of that reconciliation states, “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) 
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, and similar 

items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of 
activities.” The details of this $(2,036,281) difference are as follows: 

 
   General obligation debt payments 3,270,000$  

   Capital lease 151,258    

   Issuance of tax notes 1,170,000)( 

   Issuance of general obligation bonds 4,072,250)( 

   Premium 149,842)(    

   OPEB obligation - TMRS supplemental death benefit 38,205)(      

   OPEB obligation - Retiree health plan 27,242)(      

   Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances -

      total governmental funds  to arrive at changes in net

      assets of governmental activities 2,036,281)$( 
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 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 

Deposits and Investments 
 

As of September 30, 2019, the City had the following investments: 
 

Fair

Investment Type Value

Logic 744,477$          49

Texas Class 7,108,960      56

Weighted Average

Maturity (Days)

 
 

The Public Funds Investment Act (government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in the 
areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies. Among 
other things, it requires the City to adopt, implement and publicize an investment policy. That policy 
must address the following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) 
allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable 
stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based 
on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, and (9) bid 

solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations 

of the U. S. Treasury, certain U. S. agencies, and the State of Texas; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) 
certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) 
bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and 
(10) common trust funds. The Act also requires the City to have independent auditors perform test 
procedures related to investment practices as provided by the Act. The City is in substantial compliance 

with the requirements of the Act and with local policies. 
 

Public Funds Investment Pools 
 

Public funds investment pools in Texas (“Pools”) are established under the authority of the Interlocal 
Cooperation Act Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code and are subject to the provisions of the Public 
Funds Investment Act (the “Act”), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addition to other 

provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, the Act requires Pools to: 1) 
have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and other persons who do not have a business 
relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; 2) maintain a continuous rating of no lower 
than AAA or AAAm or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and 3) 

maintain the market value of its underlying investment portfolio within one-half of one percent of the value 
of its shares. 

 

The City’s investments in Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share of the 
Pool’s underlying portfolio, unless the Pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share value. 
A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as 
an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner 
consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. 

 

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s 
deposits may not be returned to it. State and City statutes require that all deposits in financial institutions 
be fully collateralized by U. S. Government Obligations or its agencies and instrumentalities or direct 
obligations of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities that have a fair value of not less than the principal 
amount of deposits. As of September 30, 2019, $2,190,000 of the City’s $2,470,362 deposit balance was 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution. The remaining balance, $280,362, 
was covered by FDIC insurance. 

 
Credit Risk. It is the City’s policy to limit its investments to investment types with an investment quality 
rating not less than A or its equivalent by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The City’s 
investment pool is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s Investors Service. 
 
Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in 
fair market values by limiting the average dollar-weighted maturity of its portfolio to a maximum of 365 

days. 
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Receivables 
 

Receivables as of year-end for the City’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, 
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

 
Proprietary

Economic

Development Debt Nonmajor Water

General Corporation Service Governmental and Utility Total

Receivables:

   Property taxes 26,048$       -$          140,042$  -$           -$           166,090$    

   Other taxes 1,207,173 397,030    -      190,281     -          1,794,484 

   Customer accounts 405,222    -         -      -          1,048,625  1,453,847 

   Other 90            39            -      2,160         -          2,289       

Gross receivables 1,638,533 397,069    140,042 192,441     1,048,625  3,416,710 

Less: allowance for

   uncollectibles 198,421    -         14,004   -          217,953     430,378   

Net total receivables 1,440,112$  397,069$     126,038$  192,441$      830,672$      2,986,332$  

Governmental

 
 

Capital Assets 

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was as follows: 

 
Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Government activities:

   Capital assets, not being depreciated:

      Land 8,983,831$    584,064$       -$            9,567,895$    

Total assets not being depreciated 8,983,831   584,064      -           9,567,895   

   Capital assets, being depreciated:

      Buildings and improvements 59,655,770 4,368,166   252,534)(      63,771,402 

      Machinery and equipment 6,443,705   101,630      633,701)(      5,911,634   

Total capital assets being depreciated 66,099,475 4,469,796   886,235)(      69,683,036 

Less accumulated depreciation:

      Buildings and improvements 34,080,185)( 2,804,309)(   187,216      36,697,278)( 

      Machinery and equipment 5,410,517)(   367,208)(      604,048      5,173,677)(   

Total accumulated depreciation 39,490,702)( 3,171,517)(   791,264      41,870,955)( 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 26,608,773 1,298,279   94,971)(        27,812,081 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 35,592,604$  1,882,343$    94,971)$(        37,379,976$  
 

 
Business-type activities:

   Capital assets, not being depreciated:

      Land 681,006$       -$            -$            681,006$       

Total assets not being depreciated 681,006      -           -           681,006      

   Capital assets, being depreciated:

      Buildings and improvements 64,626,601 2,447,450   -           67,074,051 

      Machinery and equipment 1,432,919   13,226        -           1,446,145   

Total capital assets being depreciated 66,059,520 2,460,676   -           68,520,196 

Less accumulated depreciation:

      Buildings and improvements 25,902,847)( 1,917,142)(   -           27,819,989)( 

      Machinery and equipment 873,166)(      64,957)(        -           938,123)(      

Total accumulated depreciation 26,776,013)( 1,982,099)(   -           28,758,112)( 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 39,283,507 478,577      -           39,762,084 

Business-type activities capital assets, net 39,964,513$  478,577$       -$            40,443,090$   
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 

Governmental activities:

   General government 523,985$       

   Public safety 285,060      

   Public works 2,165,517   

   Culture and recreation 196,955      

            Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 3,171,517$    

Business-type activities:

   Water and utility 1,982,099$    

            Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 1,982,099$    
 

 
Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

 
The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2019 is as follows: 

 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Debt Service 51,237$        

General Water and utility 2,486,159  

General Parks Improvement 54,043       

Hotel Conference Center Water and utility 638,119     

Nonmajor governmental  Water and utility 226,092     

            Total 3,455,650$   
 

 
Balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that 1) interfund goods and services are provided 
or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and 3) 
payments between funds are made. 
 
The following schedule briefly summarizes the City’s transfer activity at the fund level: 

 

Tranfers Out
General Debt Service

Nonmajor 

Governmental

Water and 

Utility

Internal 

Service Total

General -$            34,000$         31,900$         -$            49,800$         115,700$       
Economic 

Development 

Corporation

48,924        100,000      -           100,000      -           248,924      

Nonmajor 

Governmental
23,924        111,768      -           114,781      -           250,473      

Water and Utility 347,000      -           -           -           15,000        362,000      

419,848$       245,768$       31,900$         214,781$       64,800$         977,097$       

Transfers In

 
 

Transfers are used to: (1) move revenues from the fund required by statute or budget to collect them 
to the fund required by statute or budget to expand them; and (2) fund the City’s match portion for 

grants. 
 
Long-term Debt 

 
The City issues a variety of long-term debt instruments in order to acquire and/or construct major capital 

facilities and equipment for governmental and business-type activities. These instruments include 

general obligation and revenue bonds, tax notes and notes payable. These debt obligations are secured 
by either future tax revenue, water and utility system revenue, or liens on property and equipment. 
Debt obligations that are intended to be repaid from water and utility system revenue have been 
recorded as business-type activities. All other long-term obligations of the City are considered to be 
governmental-type activities. 
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Bonds Payable and Tax Notes 
 

A summary of the terms of general obligation, revenue, combination tax and revenue bonds, and tax 
notes outstanding and their corresponding allocations to the governmental and business-type activities 

at September 30, 2019, follows: 
 

Final Interest Governmental Business-type

Maturity Rate Activities Activities

General Obligation Bonds

   2007 Series 21,780,000$  2030 4% - 5% 535,000$        -$             

   2011 Series 3,715,000   2031 2% - 4% 1,380,000     495,000       

1,915,000     495,000       

General Obligation Refunding Bond

   2011 Series - Private Placement 1,625,000   2020 2.10% 190,000       -            

   2012 Series 2,605,000   2023 3% 1,120,000     -            

   2013 Series 3,295,000   2034 3.75%-4.5% 2,085,000     -            

   2014 Series 5,750,000   2030 2% - 4% -            4,760,000    

   2015 Series 3,850,000   2027 2% 3,577,840     5,487,160    

   2017 Series 6,610,000   2028 3% 6,145,000     -            

13,117,840   10,247,160  

Combination Tax and Revenue Bonds

   2006 Series - Private Placement 1,900,000   2021 4.25% 335,000       -            

   2010 Series 7,000,000   2032 1% - 5% 5,125,000     -            

   2013 Series 3,490,000   2033 2 - 4% -            2,780,000    

   2014 Series - Private Placement 4,000,000   2034 2 - 4% 2,450,000     825,000       

   2016 Series 7,590,000   2036 2 - 4% -            6,950,000    

   2017 Series 1,785,000   2032 3% 1,515,000     -            

   2018 Series 6,265,000   2038 3% - 4% 3,887,250     2,077,750    

13,312,250   12,632,750  

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

   2012 Series 1,790,000   2018 2.72% -            -            

   2014 Series 4,000,000   2027 4.12% 2,740,000     -            

   2017 Series 6,500,000   2036 3-4.75% 5,885,000     -            

8,625,000     -            

            Total Bonds 36,970,090$    23,374,910$   

Tax Notes

   2019 Series - Private Placement 1,170,000   2014 1.79% 1,170,000     

            Total Tax Notes 1,170,000$      

Series and Original

Issue Amount

 
 

Annual debt service requirements for bonds and tax notes are as follows: 
 

Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 2,820,000$       1,158,514$      1,335,000$       645,990$         

2021 2,810,000      1,071,739     1,475,000      610,190        

2022 3,075,000      982,993        1,515,000      572,602        

2023 3,120,000      885,459        1,555,000      532,227        

2024 2,920,000      786,156        1,595,000      487,202        

2025-2029 12,012,840     2,518,397     8,787,160      1,673,915     

2030-2034 5,447,250      924,087        5,217,750      426,750        

2035-2038 1,790,000      128,185        1,070,000      28,900         

Total 33,995,090$      8,455,530$      22,549,910$      4,977,776$      

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
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Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 660,000$          111,931$         45,000$            27,763$          

2021 780,000         96,410         45,000           26,638         

2022 310,000         82,899         45,000           25,288         

2023 315,000         75,611         50,000           23,863         

2024 320,000         68,204         50,000           22,363         

2025-2029 800,000         260,938        270,000         87,581         

2030-2034 960,000         199,181        320,000         32,925         

Total 4,145,000$       895,174$         825,000$          246,421$         

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Private Placement Private Placement

 
 

Annual debt service requirements for the capital lease are as follows: 
 

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 147,707$        17,319$          54,166$          7,788$            

2021 151,240       12,867         56,167         6,210           

2022 107,748       8,280           50,322         4,586           

2023 111,177       4,852           51,806         3,102           

2024 44,074         1,314           53,796         1,573           

Total 561,946$        44,632$          266,257$        23,259$          

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

 
 

The City issues a variety of long-term debt instruments in order to acquire and/or construct major capital 
facilities and equipment for governmental activities. These instruments include general obligation bonds, 
certificates of obligation, and tax notes. These debt obligations are secured by primarily future property 

tax revenues. In some cases, these bonds are also secured by a pledge of net revenues from the utility 
system. 
 
Additionally, certain obligations that were marketed as private placements have been separately 
identified; however, the terms of these obligations are not significantly different that other obligations 
and do not have substantive acceleration clauses. Should the City default on these bonds, a lawsuit 

would require the City to raise taxes to cover the annual debt payment. 

 
Debt Issuance 

 
On October 9, 2018, the City issued $6,265,000 of Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2018. The debt will be used for city park improvements, acquisition 
and installation of water meter replacements, LED lighting for City facilities, downtown beautification, 
and payment of cost of issuance and professional services.  

 
 On September 11, 2019, the City also issued $1,170,000 Tax Note, Series 2019.  
 

Federal Arbitrage 
 
General obligation bonds, combination tax and revenue bonds and certificates of obligation are subject 
to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 related to arbitrage and interest income tax 

regulations under those provisions. 
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Changes in Long-term Liabilities 
 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was as follows: 
 

 Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental activities

   General obligation and Tax 9,635,000$     4,072,250$  1,265,000$  12,442,250$   1,255,000$  

      Revenue bonds 

   General obligation and Tax 3,075,000    -         290,000    2,785,000    295,000    

      Revenue bonds - Private 

      Placement

   General obligation refunding bond 13,927,840  -         1,000,000 12,927,840  1,030,000 

   General obligation refunding bond -

      Private Placement 385,000       -         195,000    190,000       190,000    

   Sales tax revenue bond 9,145,000    -         520,000    8,625,000    535,000    

   Tax notes - Private Placement -            1,170,000 -         1,170,000    175,000    

   Premium from issuance 

      of bonds 1,025,590    149,842    103,793    1,071,639    -         

   Capital Lease 713,204       -         151,258    561,946       147,707    

   Compensated absences 844,805       75,221      54,082     865,944       216,486    

      Governmental activities

         long-term liabilities 38,751,439$   5,467,313$  3,579,133$  40,639,619$   3,844,193$  

Business-type activities

   Tax and revenue bonds 21,762,160$   2,192,750$  1,405,000$  22,549,910$   1,335,000$  

   Tax and revenue bonds -

      Private Placement 865,000       -         40,000     825,000       45,000      

   Premium from issuance

      of bonds 972,764       80,684      74,168     979,280       -         

   Capital Lease 318,890       -         52,633     266,257       54,166      

   Compensated absences 142,400       19,620      1,747       160,273       40,068      

      Business-type activities

           long-term liabilities 24,061,214$   2,293,054$  1,573,548$  24,780,720$   1,474,234$  
 

 
Accrued Compensated Absences 
 
The compensated absences liability attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated primarily 

by the General Fund. 
 

Net Pension Liability and Net Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation 
 
When these liabilities are liquidated for governmental activities, the General Fund will be primarily 
responsible. 

 
Pledged Revenues 

 

Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation 
 
The Board of Directors for the Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation adopted a resolution that 
authorized the issuance of $4,000,000 worth of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds to pay for the costs of acquiring 
real property for the Waterfront Project and the Downtown Project, planning the two projects, parking, 
landscaping, meeting space, boardwalk, trail improvements, open space or park improvements and street 

improvements related to such projects, and the payment of costs of issuance related to the issuance of 

the bonds. This debt will be paid for with a one-half and one percent sales and use tax levied on the 
receipts at retail of taxable items within the City. It is anticipated that the pledged revenues will fully pay 
for future principal and interest payments. This debt issue is due to be retired in August 2027.  
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Fund Balance 
 
As of September 30, 2019, governmental fund balance is composed of the following: 

 
Economic Hotel

Development Debt Conference Parks Other

Fund Balance Classification General Corporation Service Center Improvement Governmental Totals

Nonspendable:

   Prepaid items 1,248$          -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            1,248$          

Restricted:

   Capital acquisition 

      and construction -           -           -           6,478,892   163,412      551,923      7,194,227   

   Tourism activities -           -           -           -           -           695,090      695,090      

   Public safety -           -           -           -           -           116,640      116,640      

   Building security -           -           -           -           -           1,253         1,253         

   Economic development -           1,668,181   -           -           -           -           1,668,181   

   Police forfeiture -           -           -           -           -           45,923        45,923        

   Debt service -           1,071,180   
        

Assigned: 25,824        -           -           -           -           -           25,824        
        

Unassigned 2,165,390   -           -           -           -           -           2,165,390   

Total governmental 

   fund balance 2,192,462$    1,668,181$    1,071,180$    6,478,892$    163,412$       1,410,829$    12,984,956$   
 
Defined Benefit Pension Policies 
 

Plan Descriptions. The City of Marble Falls participates as one of 883 plans in the nontraditional, joint 
contributory, hybrid defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement 
System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with 
the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agency multiple-
employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the 
general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although 

the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally 
dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under 
Sections 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual 
financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.org. 
 
All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS. 

 

Benefits Provided. TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are 
adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing 
TMRS. 
 
At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest, and 
the City-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may 
choose to receive their retirement benefit in over of seven payments options. Members may also choose 

to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 
36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest. 
 
The City has approved an annually repeating (automatic) basis a monetary credit referred to as an 
updated service credit (USC) which is a theoretical amount which takes into account salary increases or 
plan improvements. If at any time during their career an employee earns a USC, this amount remains 

in their account earning interest at 5% until retirement. At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the 
sum of the employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the employer match plus employer 

financed monetary credits, such as USC, with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Additionally, 
City provides on an annually repeating (automatic) basis cost of living adjustments (COLA) for retirees 
equal to a percentage of the change in the consumer price index (CPI).    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

  39 

A summary of plan provisions for the City are as follows: 
 

Employee deposit rate 7.0%

Matching ratio (City to employee) 2 to 1

Years required for vesting 5

Service retirement eligibility 20 years to any age,

5 years at age 60 and above

Updated service credit 100% Repeating  
 

Employees covered by benefit terms 
 

At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by 
the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 83   

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 65   

Active employees 115 

263 
 

 
Contributions. The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee 
gross earnings, and the City matching percentages are with 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted 
by the governing body of the city. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contributions rate for each 

city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. 
The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned 
by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
 
Employees for the City were required to contribute 7.0% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal 
year. The contribution rates for the City were 5.92% and 9.56% in calendar years 2018 and 2019, 
respectively. The city’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2019, were $623,026, 

and were equal to the required contributions.  
 

Net Pension Liability. The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2018, 
and the Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. 

 
Actuarial assumptions 

 
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 
 

Inflation 2.5% per year

Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation  
 

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, 
and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with 
Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The 
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality 

improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables 

with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied 
by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males and females. In addition, a 3% minimum mortality 
rate is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are 
projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject 
to the 3% floor. 
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The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience 
of TMRS over the four-year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014. They were adopted 
in 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality 

assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the Mortality 
Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013. In 
conjunction with these changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, the System adopted the 
Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and a one-time change to the amortization policy. Plan assets 
are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the 
production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS. 
 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. In 
determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under the various 

alternative asset allocation portfolios, the actuary focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean 
(aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the geometric mean (conservative) 
with an adjustment for time (aggressive). The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real 

rates return for each major assets class in fiscal year 2019 are summarized in the following table: 
 

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return (Arithmetic)

Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.30%

International Equity 17.5% 6.10%

Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.00%

Non-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 3.39%

Real Return 10.0% 0.38%

Real Estate 10.0% 4.44%

Absolute Return 10.0% 3.56%

Private Equity 5.0% 7.75%

Total 100.0%  
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Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made 

at the rates specified in statue. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability. 
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at 12/31/2017 21,259,069$      22,147,428$      888,359)$(       

Changes for the year:

Service cost 966,975         -              966,975       

Interest 1,565,139      -              1,565,139    

Change in benefits terms 

including substantively automatic 

status 1,941,094      -              1,941,094    

Difference between expected 

and actual experience 127,487         -              127,487       

Contributions - employer -              381,858         381,858)(       

Contributions - employee -              466,494         466,494)(       

Net investment income -              662,832)(         662,832       

Benefit payments, including 

refunds of employee 

contributions 992,773)(         992,773)(         -            

Administrative expense -              12,822)(           12,822         

Other changes -              670)(               670             

Net changes 3,607,922      820,745)(         4,428,667    

Balance at 12/31/2018 24,866,991$      21,326,683$      3,540,308$     

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
The following presents the net pension asset of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, 
as well as what the City’s net pension liability/asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) of 1-percentage-higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued 
TMRS financial report. The report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.org. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.tmrs.org/
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions.  
 
For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $3,087,222. At 

September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual 

economic experience 93,400$                 63,806$              

Changes in actuarial assumptions 23,256                -                 

Difference between projected and actual 

investment earnings 1,143,621           -                 

Contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 521,603              -                 

Total 1,781,880$            63,806$              
 

 
$521,603 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for 
the year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as follows: 

 

For the year ended 

September 30,

2020 411,664$    

2021 174,587   

2022 178,662   

2023 431,558    
 

Defined Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans 

 
Retiree Health Care Plan 

 
Plan Description. The City provides health care benefits through a single-employer defined benefit 
OPEB, for all fulltime employees in an eligible class. All full-time employees of the City may participate 
in the retiree health plan upon retirement. Eligible retirees are required to pay 100% of the plan’s 
blended premium. The City’s GASB 75 liability is entirely attributable to the implicity rate subsidy. 
 
Benefits Provided 

 
Plan Participants 

 
All full-time employees of the City may participate in the retiree health plan upon retirement. Eligible 
retirees are required to pay 100% of the plan’s blended premium. The City’s GASB 75 liability is 
entirely attributable to the implicit rate subsidy.  

 

At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 3                 

Active Plan Members 106              

Total 109              
 

 
Normal Retirement Benefits 

 
Members of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) are eligible for normal retirement upon 
reaching age 60 with 5 years of service, or at any age with 20 years of service. The health care 
benefits are identical to the coverage offered to active employees. 
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Deferred Retirement Benefits 
 

Employees who terminate service prior to retirement are not eligible for retiree medical coverage. 
 

Death-in-Service Retirement Benefits 
 

Surviving spouses of active employees who die while employed are allowed continued coverage 
through COBRA only. 

 
Disability Retirement Benefits 
 

Members who retire through disability retirement are eligible for retiree medical coverage. 
 

Benefits for Spouses of Retired Employees 
 

Spouses of eligible retirees are allowed coverage under the plan. Spouse coverage will end once the 
member is no longer covered. 

 
Medicare – Eligible Provisions 

 

Qualified retirees and eligible spouses are required to enroll in Medicare once eligible. 
 

Dental and Vision Coverage 
 

The City offers dental and vision coverage for retirees and their dependents. Retirees are 100% 
responsible for the dental and vision premiums. 

 
Life Insurance Coverage 

 
The City does not offer life insurance coverage for retirees and dependents. 

 

Retiree Opt-out 
 

The City does not provide any financial reward to retirees who opt-out. 
 

Monthly Retiree Premiums Effective October 1, 2017 
 

Health Plan Employee 
Only 

Employee & 
Spouse 

Employee & 
Child(ren) 

Employee & 
Family 

HSA $462 $925 $776 $1,123 

Plan 1 $541 $1,084 $912 $1,312 

 

The City does not contribute to HSA accounts.  
 
Actuarial Assumptions. The Total OPEB Liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:  
 
Measurement year ended December 31, 2018

Actuarial cost method Individual Entry-Age

Inflation rate 2.50% per annum

Discount rate 3.71

Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.5% including inflation

Demographic Assumptions Based on the experience study covering the four year period 

ending December 31, 2014 as conducted for the Texas 

Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)

Mortality For healthy retirees, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined 

Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used 

with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates 

multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully 

generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality 

improvements.

Health Care Trend Rates Initial rate of 7.50% declining to an ultimate rate of 4.25% 

after 15 years

Participation Rates 20% for retirees that are at least 50 years old at retirement;

0% for retirees that are less than 50 years old at retirement  



 

  44 

Discount Rate. The municipal bond rate is 3.71% (based on the daily rate closest to but not later than 
the measurement date of the Fidelity “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index”). The discount rate was 3.31% 
as of the prior measurement date. 
 

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption. Regarding the sensitivity of 
the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate, the following presents the plan’s total OPEB 
liability, calculated using a discount rate of 3.71%, as well as what the plan’s total OPEB liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher: 
 

1% Decrease in Current Discount Rate 1% Increase in

Discount Rate (2.71%) Assumption (3.71%) Discount Rate (4.71%)

Total OPEB Liability 488,967$                    445,530$                    406,367$                     
 

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Assumption. Regarding 
the sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates, the following 
presents the plan’s total OPEB liability, calculated using the assumed trend rates as well as what the 
plan’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is one percent lower or 
one percent higher: 

 

1% Decrease in Current Healthcare 1% Increase in

Discount Rate (2.71%) Trend Rate Assumption Discount Rate (4.71%)

Total OPEB Liability 394,493$                    445,530$                    505,306$                     
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB. At 
September 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of $445,530 for its Total OPEB Liability. The Total OPEB 
Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018.  For the year ended 
September 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $31,301. There were no changes of benefit 
terms that affected measurement of the Total OPEB Liability during the measurement period. 

 
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 
 

Total OPEB

Liability

Balance at 12/31/2017 438,374$     

Changes for the year:

Service cost 16,302      

Interest 14,688      

Difference between expected and actual experience 1,378)(        

Changes of assumptions 16,904)(      

Benefit payments 5,552)(        

Net changes 7,156        

Balance at 12/31/2018 445,530$     
 

 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources related to other post-
employment benefits from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience -$                  1,215$              

Changes in actuarial assumptions 15,971              14,905           

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 5,181               -               

Totals 21,152$               16,120$            
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$5,181 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Total OPEB Liability for 
the year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts of the reported as deferred outflows and inflows 
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

 
For the Year

Ended September 30,

2020 311$                 

2021 311                

2022 311                

2023 311                

2024 311                

Thereafter 1,704)(               
 
TMRS Supplemental Death Benefits Fund 
 

Plan Description. The City voluntarily participates in the Texas Municipal Retirement System 
Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (TMRS SDBF). The SDBF is a single-employer defined benefit Other 
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plan as defined by GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 

Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. No assets are accumulated in a trust that 
meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. It is established and administered in 
accordance with the TMRS Act identically to the City’s pension plan.  
 

Benefits Provided. The SDBF provides group-term life insurance to City employees who are active 
members in TMRS, including or not including retirees. The City Council opted into this program via an 
ordinance, and may terminate coverage under, and discontinue participation in, the SDBF by adopting 
an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.  
 
Payments from this fund are similar to group-term life insurance benefits and are paid to the designated 

beneficiaries upon the receipt of an approved application for payment. The death benefit for active 
employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee’s annual salary 
(calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings for the 12-month period preceding the month of 
death). The death benefit for retirees is considered an other employment benefit and is a fixed amount 
of $7,500.  
 

The number of employees currently covered by the benefit terms is as follows: 

 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 58   

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 20   

Active employees 115 

Total 193 
 

 
Contributions. The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an 
annual actuarial valuation, which was 0.19% for 2019 and 0.19% for 2018, of which 0.04% and 0.04%, 
respectively, represented the retiree-only portion for each year, as a percentage of annual covered 
payroll. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for 

the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments 
for the upcoming year; the intent is not to prefund retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire 
careers. The City’s contributions to the SDBF for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 were 
$2,868 and $2,622, respectively, representing contributions for both active and retiree coverage, which 

equaled the required contributions each year. 
 

Actuarial Assumptions. The Total OPEB Liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:  
 

Measurement year ended December 31, 2018

Inflation rate 2.50% per annum

Discount rate 3.71

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Method

Projected salary increases 3.50% to 10.5% including inflation  
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Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, 
and beneficiaries were based on the following: 
 
Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 

Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% 
and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB 
to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 
Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 
109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males and females. In 
addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who 
became disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future 

mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor. Administrative expenses for the SDBF are paid through 
the TMRS Pension Trust Fund and are wholly accounted for under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 
68.  
 
Changes in assumptions reflect the annual change in the municipal bond rate. The actuarial assumptions 
used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for 

the period December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014. 
 
Discount Rate. The SDBF program is treated as an unfunded OPEB plan because the SDBF trust covers 

both actives and retirees and the assets are not segregated for these groups. As such, a single discount 
rate of 3.31% was used to measure the Total OPEB Liability. Because the plan is essentially a “pay-as-
you-go” plan, the single discount rate is equal to the prevailing municipal bond rate. The source of the 
municipal bond rate was fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only 

federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as reported in Fidelity Index’s “20-year Municipal GO AA Index” 
as of December 31, 2018. 
 
Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The following schedule shows the impact of the Total OPEB 
Liability if the discount rate used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate that was used 
(3.71%) in measuring the Total OPEB Liability. 
 

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in

Discount Rate (2.71%) Discount Rate (3.71%) Discount Rate (4.71%)

Total OPEB Liability 446,406$                   378,035$                   325,148$                    
 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEBs. At 
September 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of $378,035 for its Total OPEB Liability. The Total OPEB 
Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018.  For the year ended 
September 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $32,451. There were no changes of benefit 
terms that affected measurement of the Total OPEB Liability during the measurement period. 

 
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 
 

Total OPEB

Liability

Balance at 12/31/2017 352,907$              

Changes for the year:

Service cost 14,661               

Interest 11,880               

Difference between expected and actual 26361

Changes of assumptions 25,108)(               

Benefit payments 2,666)(                 

Net changes 25,128               

Balance at 12/31/2018 378,035$              
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At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources related to other post-
employment benefits from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual economic experience 21,222$               -$                

Changes in actuarial assumptions 17,733              20,214           

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,182               -               

Totals 41,137$               20,214$            
 

 
$2,182 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Total OPEB Liability for 
the year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts of the reported as deferred outflows and inflows 

of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

For the Year

Ended September 30,

2020 5,910$               

2021 5,910              

2022 5,910              

2023 981                

2024 30                   
 

Risk Management 
 
A public entity risk pool is a cooperative group of governmental entities joining together to finance an 

exposure, liability or risk. The City participates in the Texas Municipal League Risk Pool, a risk-sharing 
pool, for property, liability, and workers’ compensation, wherein member cities pool risks and funds and 
share in the costs of losses. Claims against the City are expected to be paid by that public entity risk 
pool. Should the City become insolvent, or otherwise unable to pay claims, the City may have to pay 
the claims. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage or insurance settlements 
exceeding insurance coverage during each of the past three years. 

 

New Accounting Standards 
 
Significant new accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
not yet implemented by the City include the following: 

 
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities – This Statement improves guidance regarding the identification 
of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be 

reported. The focus is generally on whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity and on the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. This Statement will become 
effective for the City in fiscal year 2020. 

 
Statement No. 87, Leases – This Statement will improve the accounting and financial reporting for leases 
by governments by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities previously classifies as 

operating leases. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are 
financing the right to use an underlying asset. Under the Statement a lessee is required to recognize a 

lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable 
and a deferred inflow of resource, enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about leasing 
activities. This Statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2021. 
 
Subsequent Event 

 
On October 1, 2019, the City issued $2,185,000 of Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2019. The debt will be used for a water plant clarifier, wastewater plant 
planning and design, raw water intake repairs and floodproofing, and the payment of professional 
services.  
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Plan Year 2014 2015

A. Total pension liability

Service Cost 621,054$        691,029$        

Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 1,123,420    1,207,848    

Changes of benefit terms -            -            
Difference between expected and actual experience 12,961)(         34,356)(         
Change of assumptions -            570,455       

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions 528,946)(       591,804)(       

Net change in total pension liability 1,202,567    1,843,172    

Total pension liability - beginning 16,002,799  17,205,366  

Total pension liability - ending (a) 17,205,366$   19,048,538$   

B. Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - Employer 259,082$        258,552$        
Contributions - Employee 395,979       408,547       
Net Investment Income 990,420       27,179         

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions 528,946)(       591,804)(       

Administrative Expenses 10,340)(         16,554)(         
Other 850)(              817)(              

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,105,345    85,103         

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 17,313,215  18,418,560  

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 18,418,560$   18,503,663$   

C. Net pension liability/ (asset) - ending (a) - (b) 1,213,194)$(    544,875$        

D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension 

liability/ (asset) 107.05% 97.14%

E. Covered payroll 5,656,837$     5,836,390$     

F. Net position liability/ (asset) as a percentage of covered 

payroll -21.45% 9.34%

Note: This schedule is intended to show ten years of information. 

Additional year's information will be displayed as it becomes 

available.

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 48



2016 2017 2018

750,228$        801,181$        966,975$        

1,281,912    1,350,616    1,565,139    

-            -            1,941,094    
153,085)(       46,914)(         127,487       

-            -            -            

864,720)(       908,687)(       992,773)(       

1,014,335    1,196,196    3,607,922    

19,048,538  20,062,873  21,259,069  

20,062,873$   21,259,069$   24,866,991$   

261,288$        358,624$        381,858$        
420,464       445,101       466,494       

1,250,675    2,710,663    662,832)(       

864,720)(       908,687)(       992,773)(       

14,123)(         14,047)(         12,822)(         
761)(              712)(              670)(              

1,052,823    2,590,942    820,745)(       

18,503,663  19,556,486  22,147,428  

19,556,486$   22,147,428$   21,326,683$   

506,387$        888,359)$(       3,540,308$     

97.48% 104.18% 85.76%

6,006,626$     6,358,583$     6,664,300$     

8.43% -13.97% 53.12%

49



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Fiscal Year 2014 2015 2016

Actuarial determined contribution 248,771$      259,903$      270,623$      

248,771     259,903     270,623     

Contribution deficiency (excess) -           -           -           

Covered payroll 5,563,255  5,809,989  6,189,840  

4.47% 4.47% 4.37%

Valuation Date:

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization 25 years

Period
Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.50% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information There were no benefit changes during the year.

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined

contribution

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Note: This schedule is intended to show ten years of information. Additional year's information will be

displayed as it becomes available.

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31

and become effective in January 13 months later.

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of

benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience

study of the period 2010-2014.

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male

rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and

projected on a fully generational basis of with BB.

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 50



2017 2018 2019

334,622$      383,566$      623,026$      

334,622     383,566     623,026     

-           -           -           

6,278,742  6,554,197  7,169,326  

5.33% 5.85% 8.69%

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENFITS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Plan Year ended December 31, 2017 2018

A. Total OPEB liability

Service Cost 12,081$            14,661$        
Interest (on the Total OPEB Liability) 11,622           11,880       
Difference between expected and actual experience -              26,361       
Changes of assumptions 29,063           25,108)(       

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions 2,543)(             2,666)(         

Net change in Total OPEB liability 50,223           25,128       

Total OPEB liability - beginning 302,684         352,907     

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 352,907         378,035     

B. Covered payroll 6,358,583$       6,664,200$   

C. Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 5.55% 5.67%

Note: This schedule is required to have 10 years of information, but the information prior to

2017 is not available.

Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other

Than Pensions.

Note: No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 52



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS

RETIREE INSURANCE BENEFITS PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Plan Year ended December 31, 2017 2018

A. Total OPEB liability

Service Cost 14,432$          16,302$          

Interest (on the Total OPEB Liability) 15,102         14,688         
Difference between expected and actual experience -            1,378)(           
Changes of assumptions 20,917         16,904)(         

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions 2,472)(           5,552)(           

Net change in Total OPEB liability 47,979         7,156           

Total OPEB liability - beginning 390,395       438,374       

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 438,374       445,530       

B. Covered employee payroll 6,107,242$     6,670,055$     

C. Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee 

payroll 7.18% 6.68%

Note: This schedule is required to have 10 years of information, but the information prior

to 2017 is not available.

Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other

Than Pensions.

Note: No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 53



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Variance with
Final Budget -

 Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
    Property taxes 2,430,307$      2,430,307$      2,267,850$    162,457)$(        
    Sales taxes 6,844,280     6,844,280     7,136,935   292,655        
    Franchise taxes 623,647        623,647        591,561      32,086)(          
    Mixed beverage taxes 62,000         62,000         64,018        2,018            
    Fines and forfeitures 200,000        200,000        264,229      64,229          
    Permits and fees 437,365        437,365        266,120      171,245)(        
    Intergovernmental 274,650        384,720        362,653      22,067)(          

    Interest on investments 5,150           5,150           18,012        12,862          
    Other 125,675        125,675        157,191      31,516          

            Total revenues 11,003,074   11,113,144   11,128,569 15,425          

EXPENDITURES

   GENERAL GOVERNMENT
      Administration:
         Personnel services 631,220        631,220        599,487      31,733          
         Supplies 39,300         39,300         21,603        17,697          
         Maintenance 40,100         40,100         46,531        6,431)(            
         Purchased and contracted services 284,780        284,780        297,162      12,382)(          
         Other services and charges 45,500         40,000         42,064        2,064)(            

            Total administration 1,040,900      1,035,400     1,006,847   28,553          

Finance:
         Personnel services 351,262        351,262        369,190      17,928)(          
         Supplies 19,400         19,400         18,038        1,362            
         Maintenance 31,000         31,000         28,729        2,271            
         Purchased and contracted services 35,520         35,520         34,080        1,440            
         Other services and charges 9,000           9,000           5,516          3,484            

            Total finance 446,182        446,182        455,553      9,371)(            

Human resources:
         Personnel services 117,441        117,441        117,183      258              
         Supplies 3,750           3,750           2,638          1,112            

         Maintenance 16,700         16,700         16,280        420              
         Purchased and contracted services 5,630           5,630           6,110          480)(              
         Other services and charges 38,400         38,400         26,850        11,550          

            Total human resources 181,921        181,921        169,061      12,860          

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 54



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

   GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Mayor and City Council:

         Personnel services 11,630$          11,630$          13,731$         2,101)$(            
         Other services and charges 12,000         12,000         14,041        2,041)(            

            Total Mayor and City Council 23,630         23,630         27,772        4,142)(            

Communication Services:
         Personnel services 714,410        716,910        723,325      6,415)(            
         Supplies 9,300           9,300           6,863          2,437            
         Maintenance 92,250         92,250         91,448        802              
         Purchased and contracted services 11,525         11,525         15,235        3,710)(            
         Other services and charges 13,300         13,300         14,362        1,062)(            

            Total finance 840,785        843,285        851,233      7,948)(            

      Non-departmental:
         Purchased and contracted services 158,683        158,683        158,683      -             
         Other services and charges 27,500         50,000         75,000        25,000)(          

            Total non-departmental 186,183        208,683        233,683      25,000)(          

            Total general government 2,719,601     2,739,101     2,744,149   5,048)(            

   PUBLIC SAFETY
      Court:
         Personnel services 192,248        204,248        213,228      8,980)(            
         Supplies 16,660         17,460         25,289        7,829)(            
         Purchased and contracted services 26,825         26,825         17,417        9,408            
         Other services and charges 10,580         10,980         7,589          3,391            

            Total court 246,313        259,513        263,523      4,010)(            

      Police department:
         Personnel services 2,380,140     2,380,140     2,360,337   19,803          
         Supplies 154,700        154,700        160,414      5,714)(            

         Maintenance 164,500        164,500        159,964      4,536            
         Purchased and contracted services 141,245        141,245        159,751      18,506)(          
         Other operating 70,850         70,850         47,760        23,090          

            Total police department 2,911,435     2,911,435     2,888,226   23,209          

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 55



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

   PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)
      Fire department:
         Personnel services 1,395,689$      1,531,250$      1,543,531$    12,281)$(          
         Supplies 139,417        150,451        153,664      3,213)(            
         Maintenance 87,917         87,917         104,349      16,432)(          
         Purchased and contracted services 56,935         56,935         47,728        9,207            

         Other operating 41,850         41,850         45,218        3,368)(            

            Total fire department 1,721,808     1,868,403     1,894,490   26,087)(          

      Engineering department:
         Personnel services 1,395,689     1,531,250     112,140      1,419,110     
         Supplies 139,417        150,451        4,398          146,053        
         Maintenance 87,917         87,917         7,596          80,321          
         Purchased and contracted services 56,935         56,935         28,634        28,301          
         Other operating 41,850         41,850         2,907          38,943          

            Total fire department 1,721,808     1,868,403     155,675      1,712,728     

      Code enforcement:
         Personnel services 659,598        659,598        613,713      45,885          

         Supplies 37,775         37,775         41,712        3,937)(            
         Repairs and maintenance 29,380         29,380         30,234        854)(              
         Purchased and contracted services 25,632         25,632         23,524        2,108            
         Other services and charges 21,520         21,520         21,086        434              

            Total code enforcement 773,905        773,905        730,269      43,636          

            Total public safety 5,653,461     5,813,256     5,932,183   118,927)(        

   PUBLIC WORKS 
      Streets:
         Personnel services 770,559        776,059        732,749      43,310          
         Supplies 50,100         100,105 93,737 6,368            
         Maintenance 475,000        551,500 490,073 61,427          

         Purchased and contracted services 120,550        156,050 199,711 43,661)(          
         Other services and charges 6,100           9,535           6,568          2,967            

            Total streets 1,422,309     1,593,249     1,522,838   70,411          

            Total public works 1,422,309     1,593,249     1,522,838   70,411          

 

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 56



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

   CULTURE AND RECREATION
      Parks and recreation:
         Personnel services 700,107$         700,107$         687,731$       12,376$           
         Supplies 47,250         47,250         51,257        4,007)(            
         Maintenance 150,000        150,000        184,339      34,339)(          
         Purchased and contracted services 132,300        132,300        106,200      26,100          

         Other services and charges 10,200         10,200         13,072        2,872)(            

            Total parks and recreation 1,039,857     1,039,857     1,042,599   2,742)(            

      Cemetery:
         Maintenance 5,000           5,000           2,868          2,132            
         Purchased and contracted services 1,000           1,000           563             437              
         Other services and charges 100              100              6                94                

            Total cemetery 6,100           6,100           3,437          2,663            

            Total culture and recreation 1,045,957     1,045,957     1,046,036   79)(                

   CAPITAL OUTLAY 666,197        847,322        647,200      200,122        

   DEBT SERVICE

      Principal 144,197        144,197        201,258      57,061)(          
      Interest and fiscal charges 14,220         14,220         41,561 27,341)(          

            Total debt service 158,417        158,417        242,819      84,402)(          

            Total expenditures 11,665,942   12,197,302   12,135,225 62,077          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 662,868)(        1,084,158)(     1,006,656)(   77,502          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Debt proceeds -             395,000        375,900 19,100)(          
   Premium on bond issuance -             -             13,832 13,832          
   Transfers in 454,500)(        454,500)(        419,848      874,348        

   Transfers out 30,000)(         30,000)(         115,700)(      85,700)(          
   Proceeds from insurance 10,000)(         47,567)(         470,677      518,244        
   Proceeds from sale of capital assets 31,500)(         31,500)(         44,845        76,345          

            Total other financing sources 526,000)(        563,567)(        1,209,402   1,772,969     

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,188,868)(     1,647,725)(     202,746      1,850,471     

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 1,989,716     1,989,716     1,989,716   -             
 
FUND BALANCE, ENDING 800,848$         341,991$         2,192,462$    1,850,471$      

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 57



Variance with
 Final Budget - 

 Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
   Sales taxes 2,134,112$    2,190,857$    2,378,945$    188,088$       
   Permits and fees 55,000        55,000        43,698        11,302)(        
   Intergovernmental -           26,250        30,206        3,956         
   Interest on investments 13,300        13,300        33,051        19,751        

   Other 375,000      375,000      375,000      -           

Total revenues 2,577,412   2,660,407   2,860,900   200,493      

 
EXPENDITURES

   Current:

     Personnel services 235,607      243,225      245,897      2,672)(         

     Supplies 4,500         4,500         3,002         1,498         

     Maintenance 27,700        27,700        17,386        10,314        

     Purchased and contracted services 534,010      555,910      326,561      229,349      

     Other services and charges 78,000        78,000        62,328        15,672        

   Capital outlay 1,076,000   1,480,000   1,852,373   372,373)(      

   Debt service

         Principal 520,000      520,000      520,000      -           

         Interest 399,968      399,968      400,368      400)(            

Total expenditures 2,875,785   3,309,303   3,427,915   118,612)(      

EXCESS OF REVENUES

   OVER EXPENDITURES 298,373)(      648,896)(      567,015)(      81,881        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Sale of capital assets 81,939)(        652,439      123,767      528,672)(      
   Proceeds from insurance -           7,054         7,054         -           

   Transfers out 100,000)(      200,000)(      248,924)(      48,924)(        

Total other financing sources (uses) 181,939)(      459,493      118,103)(      577,596)(      

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 480,312)(      189,403)(      685,118)(      495,715)(      

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 2,353,299   2,353,299   2,353,299   -           

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 1,872,987$    2,163,896$    1,668,181$    495,715)$(      

Budgeted Amounts

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 58
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
 
 
 
Budgetary Information 
 
Annual appropriated budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund, Hotel/Motel Tax, Police Forfeiture, 

Economic Development Corporation, and Debt Service Funds on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles. An annual non-appropriated budget is adopted for the City’s Water and Utility Enterprise 
Fund on a non-GAAP basis for managerial control. Project length budgets are adopted for General 
Improvements, Capital Projects, Trunked Radio System, Amy Young Barrier Grant, Building Security, and 
Texas Community Development Program Funds and amended on an annual basis to reflect the uncompleted 
portion of the projects. These funds adopt their budget based on individual projects that cross fund years. An 

annual comparison does not fairly represent the budgetary results for multiple year projects. 
 
The original budget is adopted by the City Council prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments are 

made during the year on approval by the City Council. Unused budget appropriations lapse at year-end unless 
carried forward to the next year by Council action. The final budget is legally adopted by the Council prior to 
September 30 of each year. 
 

The City Council has the authority to transfer appropriation balances from one expenditure category to 
another within a department. Although costs are monitored by expenditure category, the legal level of control 
(level at which expenditures may not exceed budget) is the fund level. The reported budgetary data has been 
revised for amendments authorized during the year. 
 
 



 

 

COMBINING AND 
INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS 



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 

 
Hotel/Motel Tax – to account for receipt and allocation of the City’s hotel/motel occupancy 
tax.  Use of this tax is limited by law to the promotion of tourism.  The hotel occupancy tax 
rate for the City’s hotels is 7%. 
 
Police Forfeiture – to account for cash assets seized, or the proceeds from the sale of other 
assets seized, as a result of drug related law enforcement activities.  By law, these funds must 

be used for future illegal drug enforcement activity. 
 
Trunked Radio System – to account for subscription fees from surrounding communities and the 
expenditures related to the trunked radio system. 
 
Impact Fee Fund – to account for all funds related to the water and sewer impact fees.  

 
Building Security Fund -   to account for collection of the building security fee from each 
conviction and funds are to be used for the municipal court and the building where the court 

resides. 
 
CDBG 2016 Grant – to account for the revenues and expenditures related to the Community 
Development Block Grant.  



 

 

 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

 
 

General Improvements– to account for debt issues that were received for streets and 
drainage, public works, parks, water and sewer capital projects. 

 
 



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Trunked Impact
Hotel/Motel Police Radio Fee

Tax Forfeiture System Fund
ASSETS
   Cash and investments 516,073$       45,923$         123,905$       -$          
   Other taxes receivable 190,281      -           -           -         
   Other receivable -           -           2,160         -         

   Due from other funds -           -           -           -         

   

Total assets 706,354      45,923        126,065      -         

LIABILITIES 
   Accounts payable 11,264        -           10,022        -         

   Accrued liabilities -           -           -           -         

Total liabilities 11,264        -           10,022        -         

FUND BALANCES

   Restricted 695,090      45,923        116,043      -         

Total fund balances 695,090      45,923        116,043      -         

   Total liabilities and fund balances 706,354$       45,923$         126,065$       -$          

Special Revenue

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 60



Capital Projects
Total 

Building CDBG Nonmajor
Security 2016 General Governmental

Fund Grant Improvements Funds

1,626$          597$             325,831$           1,013,955$    
-           -           -                190,281      
-           -           -                2,160         

-           -           226,092          226,092      

1,626         597            551,923          1,432,488   

-           -           -                21,286        

373            -           -                373            

373            -           -                21,659        

1,253         597            551,923          1,410,829   

1,253         597            551,923          1,410,829   

1,626$          597$             551,923$           1,432,488$    

Special Revenue
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

 AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Trunked Impact
 Hotel/Motel Police Radio Fee 

Tax Forfeiture System Fund
REVENUES
   Hotel/motel taxes 755,703$       -$            -$           -$          
   Fines and fees -           4,408         -          114,781    
   Intergovernmental -           -           32,928       -         

   Investment earnings -           1,020         -          -         

            Total revenues 755,703      5,428         32,928       114,781    
 
EXPENDITURES
   Current:
      General government -           -           -          -         
      Public safety -           20,945        35,276       -         
      Culture and recreation 568,011      -           -          -         

   Debt service:

     Interest and fiscal charges -           -           -          -         

   Capital outlay 35,142        -           -          -         

            Total expenditures 603,153      20,945        35,276       -         

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 152,550      15,517)(        2,348)(        114,781    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

   Debt proceeds -           -           -          -         

   Premium on bond issuance -           -           -          -         

   Proceeds from insurance -           672            -          -         
   Transfers in -           -           31,900       -         

   Transfers out 135,692)(      -           -          114,781)(    

            Total other financing sources 135,692)(      672            31,900       114,781)(    

(uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 16,858        14,845)(        29,552       -         

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 678,232      60,768        86,491       -         

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 695,090$       45,923$         116,043$      -$          

Special RevenueSpecial Revenue

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 62



Capital Projects

Building CDBG Nonmajor
Security 2016 General Governmental

Fund Grant Improvements Funds

-$            -$            -$                 755,703$       
5,898         -           -                125,087      
-           -           -                32,928        

-           -           32,656            33,676        

5,898         -           32,656            947,394      

11,024        -           -                11,024        
-           -           -                56,221        
-           -           -                568,011      

10,187 10,187        
-           -           441,933          477,075      

11,024        -           452,120          1,122,518   

5,126)(         -           419,464)(          175,124)(      

-           -           438,550          438,550      

-           -           16,137            16,137        

-           -                672            
-           -           -                31,900        

-           -           -                250,473)(      

-           -           454,687          236,786      

5,126)(         -           35,223            61,662        

6,379         597            516,700          1,349,167   

1,253$          597$             551,923$           1,410,829$    

Special Revenue
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CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

LaVentana PID 

Trust Fund

Gregg Ranch 

PID Trust Fund

Roper Ranch 

PID Trust Fund

Total Trust 

Funds

ASSETS

   Cash and cash equivalents 1,960$            119,988$        4,877$            126,825$        

            Total assets 1,960           119,988       4,877           126,825       

LIABILITIES

   Accounts payable 416$               124,750$        10,500$          135,666$        

NET POSITION

   Held in trust 1,544$            4,762)$(           5,623)$(           8,841)$(           

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 64



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

LaVentana 

PID Trust 

Fund

Gregg Ranch 

PID Trust 

Fund

Roper Ranch 

PID Trust 

Fund

Total Trust 

Funds

ADDITIONS
   Property tax assessment 10,915$        34,620$        -$            45,535$        

   Investment earnings 10,878       -           -           10,878       

            Total additions 21,793       34,620       -           56,413       

DEDUCTIONS
   Purchased and contracted services 5,839         39,382       21,000       66,221       

   Miscellaneous expense 26,500       -           12,961       39,461       

            Total deductions 32,339       39,382       33,961       105,682     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 10,546)(       4,762)(         33,961)(       49,269)(       

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 12,090       -           28,338       40,428       

NET POSITION, ENDING 1,544$          4,762)$(         5,623)$(         8,841)$(         

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 65



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget - 

 Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
   Hotel/motel taxes 700,000$      700,000$      755,703$   55,703$           
   Investment earnings 100           100           -       100)(               

   Other 346,000     346,000     -       346,000)(        

            Total revenues 1,046,100  1,046,100  755,703  290,397)(        

 

EXPENDITURES
  Current:
     Services 380,000     504,189     458,111  46,078          
     Other 250           250           352        102)(               
     Local assistance 75,000       89,116       109,548  20,432)(          
  Capital outlay 70,000       90,000       35,142    54,858          

  Bond issuance costs 120,000     120,000     -       120,000        

            Total expenditures 645,250     803,555     603,153  200,402        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

   OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 400,850     242,545     152,550  89,995)(          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

   Transfers out 500,268)(     500,268)(     135,692)(  364,576        

            Total other financing sources (uses) 500,268)(     500,268)(     135,692)(  364,576        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 99,418)(       257,723)(     16,858    274,581        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 678,232     678,232     678,232  -             

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 578,814$      420,509$      695,090$   274,581$         

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 66



CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

POLICE FORFEITURE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget - 

 Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
   Fines and fees -$            -$            4,408$          4,408$          

   Investment earnings 640            640            1,020         380            

            Total revenues 640            640            5,428         4,788         

 
EXPENDITURES

   Current:
     Supplies 30,000       30,000       14,445       15,555       

     Other services and charges 5,000         5,000         6,500         1,500)(         

            Total expenditures 35,000       35,000       20,945       14,055       

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

       OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 34,360)(       34,360)(       15,517)(       18,843       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

   Proceeds from insurance -           -           672            672)(            

            Total other financing sources -           -           672            672)(            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 34,360)(       34,360)(       14,845)(       19,515       

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 60,768       60,768       60,768       -           

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 26,408$        26,408$        45,923$        19,515$        

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are

an integral part of this statement. 67
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
(Unaudited) 

 
This portion of the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ comprehensive annual financial report presents multiple years 

of data to provide a historical perspective for understanding the information available in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information and for assessing the City’s overall 
financial health. 
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2010 2011 2012 2013

Governmental activities:
   Net investment in capital assets 19,625,996$   7,531,537$     8,371,582$     5,516,779$    
   Restricted 4,511,331    12,632,168  5,224,633    4,240,608   

   Unrestricted 6,923,983)(    3,770,556)(    2,961,484)(    553,652      

            Total governmental 

               activities net position 17,213,344$   16,393,149$   10,634,731$   10,311,039$  

Business-type activities:

   Net investment in capital assets 17,228,744$   20,776,151$   19,131,868$   20,924,905$  

   Restricted -            -            -            -           

   Unrestricted 649,073)(       5,517,036)(    167,021)(       3,193,075)(   

            Total business-type 

               activities net position 16,579,671$   15,259,115$   18,964,847$   17,731,830$  

Primary government:

   Net investment in capital assets 36,854,740$   28,307,688$   27,503,450$   26,441,684$  
   Restricted 4,511,331    12,632,168  5,224,633    4,240,608   

   Unrestricted 7,573,056)(    9,287,592)(    3,128,505)(    2,639,423)(   

            Total primary 

               government net position 33,793,015$   31,652,264$   29,599,578$   28,042,869$  

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

68



TABLE 1

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

5,047,808$       5,047,808$       3,569,454$       4,356,606$       4,808,202$       4,276,768$       
8,269,197      8,269,197      3,221,732      2,890,400      3,279,017      2,642,644      

4,094,506)(      4,094,506)(      1,991,433      1,444,900      2,196,849      1,877,011      

9,222,499$       9,222,499$       8,782,619$       8,691,906$       10,284,068$     8,796,423$       

19,702,970$     19,702,970$     15,476,859$     17,061,917$     16,806,620$     16,530,931$     

-              -              -              -              -              -              

3,708,817)(      3,708,817)(      120,647)(         2,522,088)(      3,105,947)(      3,871,790)(      

15,994,153$     15,994,153$     15,356,212$     14,539,829$     13,700,673$     12,659,141$     

24,750,778$     24,750,778$     19,046,313$     21,418,523$     21,614,822$     20,807,699$     
8,269,197      8,269,197      3,221,732      2,890,400      3,279,017      2,642,644      

7,803,323)(      7,803,323)(      1,870,786      1,077,188)(      909,098)(         1,994,779)(      

25,216,652$     25,216,652$     24,138,831$     23,231,735$     23,984,741$     21,455,564$     

69



2010 2011 2012 2013
EXPENSES
   Governmental activities:
      General government 2,912,799$     2,448,150$     2,773,415$    2,736,605$     
      Public safety 5,677,405    5,683,286    5,530,785   5,447,990    
      Public works 2,505,782    2,717,226    3,068,214   3,210,567    
      Culture and recreation 1,124,241    1,082,266    1,146,016   1,089,241    

      Interest on long-term debt 1,404,037    1,511,314    1,494,575   1,333,648    

         Total governmental activities 13,624,264  13,442,242  14,013,005 13,818,051  

expenses  

   Business-type activities:

      Water and wastewater 4,421,786    4,755,391    4,873,802   5,086,736    

         Total business-type 4,421,786    4,755,391    4,873,802   5,086,736    

activities expenses

Total primary government program

             expenses 18,046,050$   18,197,633$   18,886,807$  18,904,787$   

PROGRAM REVENUES
   Governmental activities:
      Charges for services:
         General government 544,704$       422,428$       343,192$       321,446$       
         Public safety 48,202        125,453      143,310      130,912      
         Public works 17,710        48,583        76,662        39,043        

         Culture and recreation 111,208      127,151      121,577      113,650      

            Total charges for services 721,824      723,615      684,741      605,051      

      Operating grants and contributions 592,418      269,845      78,620        272,770      

      Capital grants and contributions -            -            -           54,630        

 Total governmental activities

           program revenues 1,314,242    993,460      763,361      932,451      

   Business-type activities:
      Charges for services 3,107,039    3,913,067    3,550,400   3,840,593    

      Capital grants and contributions 233,368      -            1,352,500   367,738      

 Total business-type activities

          program  revenues 3,340,407    3,913,067    4,902,900   4,208,331    

Total primary government program 

            revenues 4,654,649$     4,906,527$     5,666,261$    5,140,782$     

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
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TABLE 2

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

3,615,994$        3,909,769$       4,181,958$       4,205,152$       3,990,324$      4,516,426$         
5,346,306       5,580,292      4,866,672      5,385,714      5,587,223     7,825,499        
3,236,700       3,222,080      3,220,604      3,433,441      3,630,999     3,868,741        
1,195,731       1,225,259      1,282,565      1,434,383      1,592,267     3,032,406        

1,355,703       1,484,261      1,285,496      1,736,608      1,288,511     1,418,977        

14,750,434     15,421,661    14,837,295    16,195,298    16,089,324   20,662,049      

      

5,612,611       5,314,936      5,584,311      5,787,031      5,745,262     6,194,230        

5,612,611       5,314,936      5,584,311      5,787,031      5,745,262     6,194,230        

20,363,045$      20,736,597$     20,421,606$     21,982,329$     21,834,586$    26,856,279$       

351,424$           318,716$          392,483$          420,557$          431,239$         444,108$            
167,384          168,410         183,732         212,896         220,210        241,106           
66,125           136,919         145,689         233,880         167,184        190,251           

131,589          139,471         175,899         194,374         167,472        100,447           

716,522          763,516         897,803         1,061,707      986,105        975,912           

499,805          201,338         236,577         222,627         665,202        250,167           

-               -              155,713         -              -             -                

1,216,327       964,854         1,290,093      1,284,334      1,651,307     1,226,079        

4,106,512       4,091,722      4,340,250      4,966,903      5,162,432     5,158,479        

379,524          155,000         146,850         155,000         125,260        115,000           

4,486,036       4,246,722      4,487,100      5,121,903      5,287,692     5,273,479        

5,702,363$        5,211,576$       5,777,193$       6,406,237$       6,938,999$      6,499,558$         

Fiscal Year
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2010 2011 2012 2013
NET (EXPENSE) REVENUES
   Governmental activities 12,310,022)$(  12,448,782)$(  13,249,644)$( 12,885,600)$(  

   Business-type activities 1,081,379)(    842,324)(      29,098        878,405)(      

        Total primary government

 net expense 13,391,401)(  13,291,106)(  13,220,546)( 13,764,005)(  

GENERAL REVENUES 
AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION

   Governmental activities:
      Taxes
         Property 3,995,373    4,034,744    4,074,096   4,104,048     
         Sales 5,819,527    5,877,763    6,014,725   6,754,361    
         Franchise 527,617      505,866      519,081      508,627      
         Other 502,606      421,209      418,000      637,407      
      Investment earnings 21,898        51,621        20,734        17,644        
      Loss/gain on sale of assets 225,856      215,384      -           -            
      Miscellaneous 309,554      43,166        116,511      183,678      

      Transfers 5,026,429)(    478,834      1,947,172)(   356,143      

            Total governmental activities 6,376,002    11,628,587  9,215,975   12,561,908  

   Business-type activities:
      Investment earnings 2,643          602             4,713          1,531          
      Loss/gain on sale of assets 244,723      -            -           -            

      Transfers 5,026,429    478,834)(      1,947,172   356,143)(      

            Total business-type activities 5,273,795    478,232)(      1,951,885   354,612)(      

            Total primary government 11,649,797  11,150,355  11,167,860 12,207,296  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
   Governmental activities 5,934,020)(    820,195)(      4,033,669)(   323,692)(      

   Business-type activities 4,192,416    1,320,556)(    1,980,983   1,233,017)(    

            Total primary government 1,741,604)$(    2,140,751)$(    2,052,686)$(   1,556,709)$(    

(Continued)
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
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TABLE 2

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

13,534,107)$(     14,456,807)$(    13,547,202)$(    14,910,964)$(    14,438,017)$(   19,435,970)$(      

1,126,575)(       1,068,214)(      1,097,211)(      665,128)(         457,570)(        920,751)(           

14,660,682)(     15,525,021)(    14,644,413)(    15,576,092)(    14,895,587)(   20,356,721)(      

4,281,225       4,500,973      4,701,079      4,815,932      5,148,352     5,669,378        
7,185,011       7,436,165      7,856,341      8,536,450      8,762,727     9,515,880        

521,249          595,443         578,961         539,247         583,840        591,561           
584,337          675,904         691,646         737,042         755,357        822,438           

7,975             7,376            61,500           137,190         181,545        275,258           
117,589          80,571          106,824         160,233         485,962        -                
125,269          143,445         88,702           125,819         91,585          926,591           

237,986          1,337,745)(      116,213         200,173         338,950        147,219           

13,060,641     12,102,132    14,201,266    15,252,086    16,348,318   17,948,325      

17,620           17,544          21,450           48,918           24,542          26,438             
-               -              -              -              -             -                

237,986)(          1,337,745      91,213)(           200,173)(         338,950)(        147,219)(           

220,366)(          1,355,289      69,763)(           151,255)(         314,408)(        120,781)(           

12,840,275     13,457,421    14,131,503    15,100,831    16,033,910   17,827,544      

473,466)(          2,354,675)(      654,064         341,122         1,910,301     1,487,645)(        

1,346,941)(       287,075         1,166,974)(      816,383)(         771,978)(        1,041,532)(        

1,820,407)$(       2,067,600)$(      512,910)$(         475,261)$(         1,138,323$      2,529,177)$(        

Fiscal Year
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

General fund
   Non-spendable 1,319$         7,575$           2,881$         8,841$         13,229$        
   Assigned -          -            -          -          -          

   Unassigned 610,076     669,947       758,405     1,160,376  1,283,714  

         Total general fund 611,395$      677,522$        761,286$      1,169,217$   1,296,943$   

All other governmental funds
   Restricted -$           12,632,168$   5,224,633$   4,273,668$   8,552,944$   
   Unassigned, reported in:
      Special revenue funds 1,422,918  26,819)(         26,924)(       58,872)(       26,918)(       
      Capital projects funds 3,062,898  201,456)(       236,409)(     250,872)(     196,829)(     

      Debt service funds 101,583)(     -            22,862)(       21,328       -          

         Total all other 

            governmental funds 4,384,233$   12,403,893$   4,938,438$   3,985,252$   8,329,197$   

Note: This schedule does not restate prior years for Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds.
         The City implemented GASB 54 in fiscal year 2011 to provide clearer fund balance classifications. 
         Prior years were not restated.

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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TABLE 3

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

15,681$        1,248$         1,248$         5,792$           1,248$           
-          -          -          -            25,824         

1,501,853  1,696,473  1,843,050  1,983,924    2,165,390    

1,517,534$   1,697,721$   1,844,298$   1,989,716$     2,192,462$     

7,125,338$   6,671,902$   9,650,051$   10,389,421$   10,792,494$   

242,145)(     223,746)(     10,298)(       187,390)(       -            
-          -          -          -            -            

-          -          -          80,737)(         -            

6,883,193$   6,448,156$   9,639,753$   10,121,294$   10,792,494$   
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

REVENUES
   Taxes 10,863,137$   10,823,765$   11,001,107$   12,025,271$   12,590,100$   
   Intergovernmental 581,306       311,455       182,098       364,980       636,107       
   Charges for services 367,448       352,602       332,242       309,488       380,285       
   Fines 331,153       314,459       241,594       226,467       196,119       
   Investment earnings 21,898         14,935         20,734         17,644         7,975          

   Other revenues 337,293       113,181       131,944       102,130       61,881         

       Total revenues 12,502,235  11,930,397  11,909,719  13,045,980  13,872,467  

EXPENDITURES
   General government 2,286,980    1,733,341    1,821,845    2,273,190    2,464,981    
   Public safety 5,224,806    5,229,516    5,097,359    5,004,539    5,008,527    
   Public works 1,048,398    857,364       876,789       858,697       923,402       
   Culture and recreation 1,009,801    952,954       1,010,830    952,838       1,049,905    
   Capital outlay 7,901,676    2,597,077    6,046,967    1,625,889    4,171,869    
   Debt service
      Principal 1,935,000    1,645,000    1,990,000    2,180,000    2,045,000    
      Interest 1,290,891    1,455,753    1,479,735    1,318,475    1,245,728    

      Bond issuance cost -            225,666       118,729       -            131,618       

        Total expenditures 20,697,552  14,696,671  18,442,254  14,213,628  17,041,030  

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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TABLE 4

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

13,219,657$       13,809,199$       14,627,627$       15,242,805$       16,568,141$       
349,410           367,320           322,480           851,994           425,787           
358,531           427,991           484,352           469,572           309,818           
256,367           295,414           338,164           232,020           389,316           

7,376              61,500            137,190           181,545           275,258           

151,999           275,432           253,868           161,846           536,343           

14,343,340      15,236,856      16,163,681      17,139,782      18,504,663      

3,518,051        3,272,101        3,267,055        3,388,872        3,410,347        
5,308,174        4,699,878        5,123,752        5,219,200        5,988,404        
1,006,873        1,066,985        1,148,508        1,189,947        1,522,838        
1,074,557        1,154,898        1,283,656        1,421,830        1,614,047        

457,186           1,501,203        6,260,333        2,243,067        6,306,998        

2,580,000        2,769,860        3,128,669        3,322,964        3,421,258        
1,541,339        1,268,136        1,311,244        1,359,716        1,453,451         

400                 51,892            387,363           4,600              34,900            

15,486,580      15,784,953      21,910,580      18,150,196      23,752,243      
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

EXCESS OF REVENUES
   OVER (UNDER)

   EXPENDITURES 8,195,317)$(    2,766,274)$(    6,532,535)$(    1,167,648)$(    3,168,563)$(    

OTHER FINANCING
   SOURCES (USES)
      Bonds issued 2,500,000    9,970,000    4,395,000    -            7,000,000    
      Premium on bond

 issuance -            182,399       138,990       -            89,483         
Payment to

       escrow agent -            -            4,415,261)(    -            -            
Capital lease

       proceeds -            -            -            -            -            
    Sale of asset

   proceeds 225,856       220,828       154,536       145,721       263,675       
Proceeds from 

     insurance -            -            -            120,529       74,090         
      Transfers in 1,327,300    1,648,719    1,248,269    941,946       1,022,775    

      Transfers out 1,823,729)(    1,169,885)(    645,941)(       585,803)(       809,789)(       

            Total other financing

               sources (uses) 2,229,427    10,852,061  875,593       622,393       7,640,234    

NET CHANGE IN

   FUND BALANCES 5,965,890)$(    8,085,787$     5,656,942)$(    545,255)$(       4,471,671$     

DEBT SERVICE AS
   A PERCENTAGE
   OF NONCAPITAL

   EXPENDITURES 25.21% 25.63% 25.63% 27.79% 25.75%

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(Continued)
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TABLE 4

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

1,143,240)$(        548,097)$(           5,746,899)$(        1,010,414)$(        5,247,580)$(        

-                3,762,700        14,895,000      -                5,242,250        

-                61,571            644,277           -                149,842           

-                3,782,686)(        6,919,367)(        -                -                

-                -                23,615            479,387           -                

80,571            106,824           266,894           839,389           168,612           

-                11,602            14,481            24,647            478,403           
630,347           577,043           833,820           491,275           697,516           

793,092)(           490,830)(           673,647)(           197,325)(           615,097)(           

82,174)(            246,224           9,085,073        1,637,373        6,121,526        

1,225,414)$(        301,873)$(           3,338,174$         626,959$            873,946$            

30.39% 28.27% 28.53% 29.43% 22.23%
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Less:
Fiscal Residential Commercial Industrial Tax-exempt
Year Property Property Property Property

2010 431,611,806$   299,990,332$    15,323,397$     52,294,519$        

2011 449,282,544  303,980,627   13,900,757    59,117,775       

2012 461,541,079  317,371,849   18,047,379    69,888,903       

2013 474,425,723  316,912,217   17,386,158    75,820,498       

2014 507,944,535  345,561,505   16,636,105    81,886,092       

2015 546,541,560  362,210,449   19,205,994    101,114,663     

2016 669,887,911  369,579,204   20,393,671    149,103,303     

2017 716,529,053  374,129,771   19,187,025    164,271,764     

2018 818,119,036  400,002,343   28,583,160    194,893,192     

2019 920,286,236  451,953,511   29,142,848    211,205,527     

Source: Burnet County Tax Appraisal 

Note:   Total Direct Tax Rate includes totals of City, School and County Tax Rates.  
See Table 6 for individual rates.

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
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TABLE 5

Estimated
Total Taxable Total Actual

Assessed Direct Taxable
Value Tax Rate Value

694,631,016$      2.2742     638,671,384$   

708,046,153     2.3135     617,612,731  

727,071,404     2.3159     625,782,678  

732,903,600     2.3234     625,665,424  

788,256,053     2.3423     675,881,626  

826,843,340     2.3519     691,359,702  

910,757,483     2.3399     725,164,073  

945,574,085     2.3343     743,445,866  

1,051,811,347  2.3180     815,061,904  

1,190,177,068  2.2816     933,743,351  
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TABLE 6

General Marble
Obligation Total Falls

Fiscal Basic Debt Direct School Burnet
Year Rate Service Rate District County

2010 0.6435        28,075,000$   2.3135        1.2900        0.3692        

2011 0.6435        36,765,000  2.3135        1.2900        0.3724        

2012 0.6435        33,340,000  2.3159        1.2900        0.3724        

2013 0.6483        33,155,000  2.3234        1.2800        0.3951        

2014 0.6483        38,115,000  2.3423        1.2800        0.4140        

2015 0.6483        37,293,633  2.3399        1.2800        0.4025        

2016 0.6483        34,741,998  2.3399        1.2800        0.3969        

2017 0.6340        40,464,984  2.3180        1.2786        0.3969        

2018 0.6150        37,193,430  2.2816        1.2686        0.3900        

2019 0.6100        40,165,499  2.8259        1.1986        0.3582        

Source: Burnet County Appraisal District, City of Marble Falls, Marble Falls Independent School District.

Note:   

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS 

The City's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed on the previous

January 1.

City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 7

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Value Value Value

Worldmark the Club 16,030,944$    14.07%       9,604,358$           15.31%

NE Marble Falls LP 15,963,033   14.01%       7,877,472            12.56%

HTA- Marble Falls MOB LLC 14,321,840   12.57%       7,503,163            11.96%

Bray Spaar Partnership 13,382,146   11.74%       6,593,997            10.51%

Huber Carbonates LLC 11,283,734   9.90%         6,832,580            10.89%

Perdernales Electric Co-Op 10,472,729   9.19%         5,916,379            9.43%

Wal-Mart Stores Inc 01-0781 9,562,721     8.39%         4,935,878            7.87%

Homestead Mormon Mill LP 8,221,087     7.21%         4,743,066            7.56%

L Dor V Dor LLC 8,003,212     7.02%         4,393,289            7.00%

Heritage Hotels Marble Falls Ltd 6,712,461     5.89%          4,339,883            6.92%

113,953,907$  100.00%     62,740,065$         100.00%

Source:  Burnet County Appraisal office

2019 2010

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR 
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TABLE 8

Fiscal Taxes Levied Collections
Year for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage

 Ended Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2010 3,913,952$    3,857,118$    98.55%  56,834$    3,913,952$    100.00%      

2011 3,931,482   3,909,526   98.39%  21,956   3,931,482   100.00%      

2012 4,021,309   3,953,241   98.30%  68,068   4,021,309   100.00%      

2013 4,050,862   3,995,294   98.63%  55,568   4,050,862   100.00%      

2014 4,228,317   4,177,438   98.80%  -       4,177,438   98.80%        

2015 4,469,891   4,426,411   99.03%  -       4,426,411   99.03%        

2016 4,673,677   4,657,916   99.66%  15,761   4,673,677   100.00%      

2017 4,792,210   4,781,916   99.79%  -       4,781,916   99.79%        

2018 5,119,048   5,079,790   99.23%  -       5,079,790   99.23%        

2019 5,653,905   5,580,013   98.69%  37,321   5,617,334   99.35%        

                     CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

Fiscal Year of the Levy
Collected With the

Total Collections to Date

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 9

Fiscal Year Revenue Tax Rate

2009-10 5,798,120$               8.25%

2010-11 5,877,763              8.25%

2011-12 6,014,725 8.25%

2012-13 6,754,361              8.25%

2013-14 7,185,011              8.25%

2014-15 7,436,166              8.25%

2015-16 7,856,341              8.25%

2016-17 8,536,450              8.25%

2017-18 8,762,727              8.25%

2018-19 9,515,880              8.25%

SALES TAX HISTORY

MAJOR SOURCE OF REVENUE

                                   CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
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Business-type 

Activities
General Water

Fiscal Obligation Tax Notes Capital Premiums / Revenue
Year Bonds Notes Payable Lease Discounts Bonds

2010 28,075,000$      950,000$      -$   -$          -$              17,700,000$           

2011 35,860,000     600,000     -  -         -             17,515,000          

2012 35,130,000     295,000     -  -         -             16,790,000          

2013 33,155,000     90,000       -  -         -             16,035,000          

2014 38,115,000     -          -  -         611,836        19,730,000          

2015 36,735,000     -          -  -         558,633        17,770,000          

2016 34,177,840     -          -  -         564,158        24,757,160          

2017 39,332,840     -          -  391,781    1,132,144     23,712,160          
2018 36,167,840     -          -  713,204    1,025,590     22,627,160          
2019 36,970,090     1,170,000  -  561,946    1,071,639     23,374,910          

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

See Table 15 for personal income and population data.  

Governmental Activities

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 10

Business-type 

Activities

Total Percentage
Tax Notes Capital Premiums / Primary of Personal Per

Notes Payable Lease Discounts Government Income Capita

-$             -$  -$       -$            46,725,000$      0.001 6,072  

-            - -      -           53,975,000     0.002 7,497  

-            - -      -           52,215,000     0.002 7,252  

-            - -      -           49,280,000     0.001 8,136   

-            - -      201,462      58,658,298     0.001 9,256  

-            - -      594,262      55,657,895     0.002 8,864   

-            - -      1,121,098   60,620,256     0.002 9,584   

-            - -      1,046,931   65,615,856     0.002 10,257  
-            - 318,890 972,764      61,825,448     0.002 8,954   
-            - 266,257 979,280      64,394,122     0.001 9,289   

Business-type Activities
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TABLE 11

Percentage of
General Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Value of Per
Year Bonds Total Property Capita

2010 28,075,000$     28,075,000$     4.39%        3,648.47 

2011 36,765,000    36,765,000    5.95%        5,106.25 

2012 33,340,000    33,340,000    5.32%        4,630.56 

2013 31,650,000    31,650,000    5.06%        4,395.83   

2014 38,115,000    38,115,000    5.64%        6,292.72   

2015 37,293,633    37,293,633    5.39%        5,885.06   

2016 34,741,998    34,741,998    4.79%        5,533.05   

2017 40,464,984    40,464,984    5.44%        6,397.63   

2018 37,193,430    37,193,430    4.56%        5,814.20   

2019 38,041,729    38,041,729    4.07%        5,487.84   

Notes:

     Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

     See Table 5 for property value data.

     Population data can be found in Table 15.

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
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TABLE 12

Estimated
Share of

Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable Debt

   Debt repaid with property taxes
      Marble Falls Independent School District 101,665,000$   24.52%     24,928,258$             

      Burnet County General Obligation Debt 24,080,000    16.14%     3,886,512              

            Subtotal overlapping debt 28,814,770            

            City direct debt 63,565,919    100.000% 63,565,919            

            Subtotal direct debt 63,565,919            

            Total direct and overlapping debt 92,380,689$             

Sources:  Burnet County Auditor (Burnet County Website), Marble Falls ISD

Notes:

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Government Unit

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries

of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping

governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Marble Falls. This process

recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire

debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this

does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident--and therefore responsible for repaying the debt--

of each overlapping government.
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2010 2011 2012 2013

Debt limit 638,075,046$     572,437,375$     577,490,755$     575,499,669$     

Total net debt applicable to limit 28,075,000      35,860,000      33,340,000      33,155,000      

Legal debt margin 610,000,046$     536,577,375$     544,150,755$     542,344,669$     

Total net debt applicable to the limit
   as a percentage of debt limit. 4.40% 6.26% 5.77% 5.76%

Assessed value 837,800,028$     

Debt applicable to limit:
      General obligation bonds
      Less:  Amount set aside for
            repayment of general

            obligation debt 38,041,729      

                     Total net debt applicable to limit 38,041,729)(      

Legal debt margin 799,758,299$     

Note:
The City Charter of the City of Marble Falls, Texas, does not provide for a debt limit.

Under provisions of state law, the maximum tax rate is limited to $2.50 per $100 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2019

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 13

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

600,546,263$     635,518,195$   672,759,187$   837,800,028$   837,800,028$   837,800,028$    

38,115,000      37,293,633   34,741,998    39,332,840   37,193,430    38,041,729    

562,431,263$     598,224,562$   638,017,189$   798,467,188$   800,606,598$   799,758,299$    

6.35% 5.87% 5.164% 4.695% 4.439% 4.541%
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TABLE 14

Utility Less: Net
Fiscal Service Operating Available
Year Charges Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

2010 3,523,144$   2,409,754$   1,113,390$   1,175,000$   1,014,268$   0.51

2011 3,107,039  2,313,375  793,664     875,000     777,636     0.48

2012 3,550,400  2,328,678  1,221,722  750,000     712,063     0.84

2013 3,667,973  2,284,656  1,383,317  755,000     668,087     0.97

2014 4,034,129  2,623,404  1,410,725  795,000     785,973     0.89

2015 3,990,243  2,465,718  1,524,525  760,000     369,720     1.35

2016 4,261,258  2,855,403  1,405,855  450,140     667,024     1.26

2017 4,815,277  2,915,508  1,899,769  2,250,000  953,714     0.59

2018 5,095,938  3,034,187  2,061,751  2,455,000  920,068     0.61

2019 5,041,932  3,510,616  1,531,316  2,700,000  925,662     0.42

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Operating expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Debt Service

Water Revenue Bonds

Notes:
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TABLE 15

Per Capita
Calendar Personal Personal Unemployment

Year Population Income Income Rate

2010 7,695          48,442$         27,008$           1.5%                

2011 7,200          43,329        22,679          7.1%                

2012 7,200          43,329        22,679          7.1%                

2013 6,057          43,722        21,425          4.1%                

2014 6,337          43,199        23,194          5.4%                

2015 6,279          43,199        21,689          3.6%                

2016 6,325          39,713        22,254          3.6%                

2017 6,397          54,170        23,377          3.6%                

2018 6,905          59,434        24,994          1.7%                

2019 6,932          64,953        26,169          2.2%                

Sources:

Unemployment rate obtained from Texas Workforce Commission website.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Median Household Income and Per Capita Income provided by Capital Area Council of

Governments.

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS
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TABLE 16

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City

Employees Employment Employees Employment

Marble Falls ISD 685 21.69%     649 37.54%     
Horseshoe Bay Resort 662 20.96%     ** **
Baylor Scott & White 573 18.14%     ** **
H.E.B. Grocery Company 324 10.26%     200 11.57%     
Wal-Mart Corporation 285 9.02%       360 20.82%     
Lowe's 140 4.43%       100 5.78%       
City of Marble Falls 137 4.34%       127 7.35%       
Granite Mesa 115 3.64%       83 4.80%       
Gilbraltar 127 4.02%       119 6.88%       
The Home Depot 110 3.48%       91 5.26%       

            Total 3,158       100.00%    1,729      100.00%    

Source: Marble Falls Economic Development Corporation and personal telephone interviews

** Data not available for employer in 2010.

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO

Employer

2019 2010
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Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

General government
   Management services 2           2           3           5           4           
   Finance 5           5           5           5           4           
   Planning 6           6           6           5           4           
   Building 5           5           6           7           4           
   Other 3           4           4           -      -      
   Human resources 1           1           2           2           1           

Court 3           3           3           3           2           

Police
   Officers 26         25         24         20         19         
   Civilians 13         15         15         15         12         

Fire
   Firefighters and officers 15         15         15         15         15         

Other public works
   Other 13         13         13         13         12         

Parks and recreation 11         11         11         11         9           

Water 14         14         14         14         11         

Wastewater 10         10         10         10         9           

            Total 127       129       131       125       106       

Source: Various Departments

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

FULLTIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES

BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
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TABLE 17

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

4           4           4           4           4           
4           4           4           4           4           
4           4           5           4           4           
4           4           5           5           5           

-      -      -      -      -      
1           1           1           1           1           

2           2           3           3.5        3.5        

19         19         20         21         22         
12         12         12         13         13         

15         15         15         15         18         

11         11         11         11         11         

9           9           9           11         11         

11         11         12         13         12         

10         10         10         10         10         

106       106       111       116       119       
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Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013

General government
   Building permits issued 662        564        564        259        
   Building inspections conducted 1,201     1,108     3,289     1,515     

Police
   Physical arrests 661        993        959        934        
   Parking violations 26          22          35          31          
   Traffic violations 2,508     1,650     1,062     2,101     

Fire
   Emergency responses 765        821        821        1,215     
   Fires extinguished 9            12          12          10          
   Inspections 849        771        840        239        

Other public works
   Street resurfacing (miles) 3            4            2            1            
   Tonnage to repair potholes 1,993     1,240     600        160        

Parks and recreation
   Community center admissions 130        139        240        186        

Library
   Volumes in collection 44,323   43,512   43,512   39,590   
   Total volumes borrowed 148,999  149,229  149,229  198,785  

Water
   New connections 593        1,131     490        582        
   Water main breaks 210        208        200        104        
   Average daily consumption 1,233     1,445     1,500     1,500     
      (thousands of gallons)
   Peak daily consumption 2,058     2,397     2,400     2,132     
      (thousands of gallons)

Wastewater
   Average daily sewage treatment 625        636        675        820        
      (thousands of gallons)

Source:  Various City departments

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 18

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

259        641        793        726        726        931        
1,377     938        2,700     1,479     1,751     1,761     

837        718        739        665        503        712        
25          20          12          25          7            217        

1,762     998        1,317     1,195     1,278     2,436     

1,234     1,291     1,538     1,746     1,601     1,665     
6            4            7            40          49          50          

211        357        392        309        597        886        

2            5            2            1            2            5            
150        204        500        450        475        477        

160        191        266        213        191        121        

39,590   41,109   40,594   41,851   40,507   40,614   
198,785  106,585  136,317  114,200  117,698  116,778  

582        590        497        424        538        26          
125        108        150        110        126        75          

1,522     1,416     1,352     1,419     1,421     1,211     

2,005     2,066     2,555     2,800     2,458     2,145     

860        998        981        1,024     1,189     1,021     
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Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Police
   Stations 1            1            1            1            1            
   Patrol units 25          25          25          11          15          

Fire
   Stations 1            1            1            1            1            

Public works
   Streets (miles) 60          60          60          62          62          
   Highways (miles) 14          14          14          15.2       15.2       
   Streetlights 448        448        448        448        448        
   Traffic signals 14          14          14          14          14          

Parks and recreation
   Acreage 123        123        123        127        127        
   Playgrounds 6            6            6            6            4            
   Baseball/softball diamonds 8            8            8            8            4            
   Soccer/football fields 9            3            3            3            8            
   Community centers 1            1            1            1            1            

Water
   Water mains (miles) 83          83          83          84          84          
   Fire hydrants 544        544        544        544        544        
   Storage capacity 2,939     2,739     2,739     2,939     2,939     
      (thousands of gallons)

Wastewater
   Sanitary sewers (miles) 63          63          63          63          63          
   Storm sewers (miles) 12          12          12          12          12          
   Treatment capacity 980        980        980        980        980        
      (thousands of gallons)

Source:  Various City departments

CITY OF MARBLE FALLS, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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TABLE 19

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

1            1            1            1            1            
15          15          15          27          33          

1            1            1            1            1            

62          64          64          65          66          
15.2       15.2       15.2       15.2       15.2       
595        599        599        606        617        
14          15          15          15          17          

130        130        150        153        158        
4            4            4            6            6            
4            4            4            4            4            
8            8            8            8            8            
1            2            2            2            2            

95          95          96          98          98          
582        589        606        626        634        

3,479     3,419     3,419     3,488     3,488     

68          68          68          68          68          
12          12          12          12          12          

980        1,500     1,500     1,500     1,500     
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

 OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Mayor and Members of City Council 
   City of Marble Falls, Texas 

Marble Falls, Texas 
 
 
 We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Marble 

Falls, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise City of Marble Falls, Texas’ basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon date February 12, 2020. 
 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 

 In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Marble Falls, 
Texas’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness City of Marble Falls, Texas’ internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Marble Falls, Texas’ internal control. 

 

 A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 

the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

 

 As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Marble Falls, Texas’ financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 

to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
 The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 
 
Waco, Texas 
February 12, 2020 



  
City of Marble Falls, Texas 

Council Agenda Item Cover Memo 
February 18, 2020 

 
  
Agenda Item: Executive Session 
Prepared By: Christina McDonald, City Secretary 
Department:   Administration 
Submitted By: Christina McDonald, City Secretary 
 

AGENDA CAPTION 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
CLOSE OPEN SESSION AND CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to §551.071 (Private 
Consultation between the Council and its Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberation regarding the 
Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property) and pursuant to §551.087 (Deliberation 
Regarding Economic Development Negotiations) of the Open Meetings Act. Tex. Gov’t. Code, 
Council will meet in Executive Session to discuss the following: 
 

• Hotel Conference Center Update 
• Discussion regarding Economic Development Prospects 
• Consultation with City Attorney regarding settlement of condemnation litigation 

regarding 110 and 114 Buena Vista properties 
 

CERTIFICATION: 
I hereby certify that I have reviewed the proposed topic for the Executive Session described 
herein and, in my opinion, the Texas Open Meetings Act authorizes the Marble Falls City 
Council to meet in Executive Session and to deliberate regarding the subject matter contained 
in this cover memo. 
 
Signed this     day of     , 2020. 
 
       
City Attorney 
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